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Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (§229.405 of this
chapter) is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or
information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form
10-K.  x 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer,
or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” and “smaller reporting
company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.  (Check One):

Large accelerated filer ¨                                                                                                                     Accelerated filer ¨
Non-accelerated filer ¨ (Do not check if a smaller reporting company)                                      Smaller reporting
company x

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act).    Yes  ¨  No  x 

As of June 30, 2008, the aggregate market value of Alpha Innotech Corp. Common Stock, $.01 par value, held by
non-affiliates, computed by reference to the average of the closing bid and asked prices as reported by OTCBB, was
$3,287,994. Shares of common stock held by each officer and director and by each person who owns 5% or more of
the outstanding Common Stock have been excluded in that such persons may be deemed to be affiliates. This
determination of affiliate status is not necessarily a conclusive determination for other purposes.

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the registrant’s classes of common stock, as of the latest
practicable date.

$0.01 Par Value Common Stock 10,939,508 shares as of March 26, 2009.

Documents Incorporated by Reference

Portions of the Registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting are incorporated by reference
into Part III of this Form 10-K.
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Safe Harbor Statement under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995

Information included in this Form 10-K may contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A
of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Except
for the historical information contained in this discussion of the business and the discussion and analysis of financial
condition and results of operations, the matters discussed herein are forward looking statements. These forward
looking statements include but are not limited to the Company’s plans for sales growth and expectations of gross
margin, expenses, new product introduction, and the Company’s liquidity and capital needs. This information may
involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause our actual results, performance or
achievements to be materially different from future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by any
forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements, which involve assumptions and describe our future plans,
strategies and expectations, are generally identifiable by use of the words “may,” “will,” “should,” “expect,” “anticipate,”
“estimate,” “believe,” “intend” or “project” or the negative of these words or other variations on these words or comparable
terminology. In addition to the risks and uncertainties described in “Risk Factors” below and elsewhere in this Form
10-K, these risks and uncertainties may include consumer trends, business cycles, scientific developments, changes in
governmental policy and regulation, currency fluctuations, economic trends in the United States and inflation.
Forward-looking statements are based on assumptions that may be incorrect, and there can be no assurance that any
projections or other expectations included in any forward-looking statements will come to pass. Our actual results
could differ materially from those expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements as a result of various
factors. Except as required by applicable laws, we undertake no obligation to update publicly any forward-looking
statements for any reason, even if new information becomes available or other events occur in the future.

PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Introduction

Alpha Innotech Corporation (“Alpha CA”) was incorporated and began operations in June 1992, in the state of
California, with facilities in San Leandro, California. Xtrana, Inc. was incorporated in January 1987 in the state of
Delaware. On October 3, 2005, Alpha Innotech Corporation was acquired by Xtrana, Inc. As a result of this
transaction, Alpha Innotech Corporation merged with a subsidiary of Xtrana, Inc. and became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Xtrana, Inc. Xtrana, Inc. changed its corporate name to Alpha Innotech Corp. and obtained a new trading
symbol APNO.OB. Alpha Innotech Corp. is alternatively referred to in this report as “we,” “us,” “our,” or the “Company”. We
formed Alpha Innotech Hong Kong Limited,  incorporated under the laws of in Hong Kong November 13, 2008. On
December 12, 2008, 100% ownership of Alpha Innotech Hong Kong Limited was transferred to us from its
incorporator and it is now our wholly-owned subsidiary. The assets, liabilities, equity and operations of this entity are
not material.

Products and Markets

We manufacture and sell analytical laboratory instruments, software and consumables used in life science research
laboratories for the study of nucleic acids (DNA and RNA), proteins and cells.

Products
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Most of our sales come from a line of instruments we group under the heading Gel Imaging. These imaging systems,
sold under our trademarks AlphaDigiDoc®, AlphaImager®, FluorChem® and redTM, comprise a digital camera and
bench-top dark enclosure and are used to detect, archive, and analyze fluorescent, chemiluminescent and visible
signals from biological samples, such as DNA, proteins and bacterial colonies. We offer a comprehensive Gel
Imaging system product line spanning a wide spectrum of prices and product specifications. Other products in the Gel
Imaging group include software (AlphaView® software for data acquisitions and analysis and Alpha GelFox™ software
for 2D gel analysis), and reagents and assay kits (ChemiGlow® chemiluminescent substrate, AlphaQuant® molecular
ladders, and FAST TF transcription factor assay kit).

We also sell a line of instruments we group under the heading Microimaging. Researchers use our Microimaging
products to analyze slides or multi-well microplates “printed” with genomic, proteomic, or cellular samples, and in some
cases, fixed cell cultures. We currently market two instruments for the Microimaging market: the AlphaScan® laser
scanner and the NovaRay® detection platform. We offer ArrayVision® data collection software for use with either
system.

1
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In April 2008, we introduced the red™ personal gel imager featuring an integrated touch screen and on-board computer.
Sold through a new distribution partner, ISC BioExpress, as well as through our other existing sales channels, the red™
product has been well received.

In June 2008, we introduced the FluorChem® Q, a CCD-based imaging system for detecting both chemiluminescent
and fluorescent Western blots. The FluorChem Q has been well received.

Markets

We have three customer bases: (1) domestic end users who receive a quote directly from us through a direct sales
representative or through a manufacturer’s representative, (2) international distributors who resell to end users outside
the US, and (3) GE Healthcare, to which we supply products on an OEM basis for resale under the GE Healthcare
brand in the domestic and international markets. When viewed this way, 2008 sales break down as follows: (1) direct
and manufacturers’ representative domestic sales of approximately 46%, (2) international distributors’ sales of
approximately 36%, and (3) OEM sales to GE Healthcare of approximately 18%.

Distribution

In the United States, we sell our products through a network of direct sales representatives and independent
manufacturers’ representatives. We also sell our red™ personal imaging system on a non-exclusive basis through ISC
BioExpress. Internationally, we sell our products through a network of independent distributors. Our independent
distributors generally perform sales, marketing and technical support functions for their local customers. We also
manufacture instruments for distribution by GE Healthcare on an OEM basis.

Competition

The Gel Imaging instruments we sell face intense competition from laboratory instrumentation manufacturers such as
Bio-Rad Laboratories, Inc., Carestream Health, Syngene, UVP, Inc., and Fuji Photo Film Co., Ltd. The Gel Imaging
market is relatively mature, and product offerings of most of the major competitors are similar to ours in technical
specifications and price. The Microimaging instruments we sell also encounter strong competition from products
offered by PerkinElmer, Inc. and Tecan Group Ltd.

We intend to compete through our efforts to optimize our distribution channel, to bring new products to market, and to
decrease costs of manufacturing inputs. We cannot be certain that our initiatives will prove to be successful, or that we
will have sufficient funds to fully implement them.

Sources and Availability of Materials

We use original equipment manufacturers, or OEMs, for various parts of our products, including the cameras,
cabinets, transilluminators, certain subassemblies, filters and lenses. We obtain these key components from a small
number of sources. In 2008, we obtained most of our cameras from a limited number of suppliers, including: Roper
Scientific of Tucson, AZ, Diagnostic Instrument of Sterling Heights, MI, Point Grey of Vancouver, Canada, and
Apogee of Roseville, CA. We obtained most of our cabinets from Custom Product Development of Livermore, CA
and Pacific Imaging Electronics, Ltd. in Taiwan. From time to time, we have experienced delays in obtaining
components from certain of our suppliers, which have had an impact on our production schedule for imaging systems.
We believe that alternative sources for these components in the event of a disruption or discontinuation in supply may
not be available on a timely basis, which could disrupt our operations and impair our ability to manufacture and sell
our products.
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Dependence on One or Few Customers

In fiscal year ending December 31, 2008, sales to GE Healthcare accounted for approximately 18% of our total sales;
no other customer accounted for more than 8% of our sales. In fiscal year ending December 31, 2007, sales to GE
Healthcare accounted for approximately 24% of our total sales; no other customer accounted for more than 7% of our
sales.

Intellectual Property

Our patent portfolio consists of four issued U.S. patents relating to Gel Imaging and Microimaging technology. These
patents expire in 2018, 2022 and 2024.

2
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On March 4, 2008, pursuant to the terms of a Patent Purchase Agreement effective as of December 3, 2007, as
amended, we transferred rights to two patents to Ph. Capital Holdings L.L.C., a Delaware limited liability company, in
exchange for $100,000. We retained worldwide, non-exclusive licenses under the transferred patents.

Under the terms of an agreement entered into in 2004 with Digital Optical Imaging Corporation (“DigiOpt”), we
received certain exclusive license rights to make and sell products incorporating the inventions disclosed in four of
DigiOpt’s United States patents. Under the terms of the agreement, we committed to pay certain patent prosecution
fees and costs; to date these costs have been minimal. We also committed to pay DigiOpt guaranteed minimum
royalties of the aggregate of $40,000 over a five-year period beginning October 30, 2007. All amounts due as of the
date of this report have been paid. DigiOpt may convert the exclusive license rights to non-exclusive as we did not
make a first commercial sale by October 30, 2007; DigiOpt may also terminate them outright as we did not make a
first commercial sale by April 30, 2008. We no longer intend to incorporate this technology into our products.

Our proprietary instrument designs and software are also protected under state and federal trade secret and copyright
law.

Alpha GelFox™ and red™ are trademarks of the Company. The Alpha Innotech logo, the intertwined helix design, and the
word marks AlphaDigiDoc®, AlphaEase®, AlphaImager®, AlphaQuant®, AlphaScan®, Alpha View®,
ChemiGlow®, Chromalight®,  FluorChem®, MultiImage® and NovaRay® are registered trademarks of the
Company. All other trademarks, service marks and trade names appearing in this Form 10-K are the property of their
respective owners.

Effect of Existing or Probable Governmental Regulation on the Business

Our revenues derived from sales in China through distributors and resellers may be adversely impacted by recent and
future changes in the regulatory environment in China, which could significantly impact our total revenues. For
example, the Measures for Control of Pollution from Electronic Information Products (hereinafter referred to as the
"Measures"), jointly enacted by seven government agencies of the People's Republic of China ("PRC"), took effect as
of March 1, 2007. The Measures apply to the manufacture, import and sale of electronic information products within
the territory of the PRC and require manufacturers or importers of electronic information products to ensure the
products they produce or import comply with national and industrial standards of the PRC on control of hazardous
substances and to label products containing certain hazardous substances, such as lead, mercury, cadmium, and
hexavalent chromium. Any delays in our ability, or our inability, to comply with such new regulations will adversely
affect our business. Further regulatory changes in China and any other jurisdiction where we derive a significant
amount of revenue may adversely affect our business.

Research and Development Activities

Our research and development activities are focused on sustaining engineering and product development for the Gel
Imaging product line, and evaluation of new product candidates identified through business development. We spent
$1,343,752 in 2008 and $1,322,758 in 2007 on research and development.

Employees

As of December 31, 2008, we had 51 full-time employees and 4 part-time employees. We consider our relations with
employees to be satisfactory. None of our employees is covered by a collective bargaining agreement.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
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Our business is subject to various risks, including those described below. You should carefully consider the following
risk factors and all other information contained in this Form 10-K. If any of the following events or outcomes actually
occurs, our business, operating results, and financial conditions would likely suffer.

3
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Changing worldwide economic conditions could materially adversely affect us.

Our operations and performance depend significantly on worldwide economic conditions and their impact on levels of
spending by our customers and end users, including pharmaceutical companies, academic/medical institutions,
biotechnology companies and government institutes around the world. Worldwide economic conditions have
deteriorated significantly in many countries and regions, including without limitation the United States, and may
remain depressed for the foreseeable future. These changing worldwide economic conditions could have a material
adverse effect on demand for our products and services and on our financial condition and operating results.

Current volatility and disruption in the capital and credit markets may continue to exert downward pressure on our
stock price.

The capital and credit markets have been experiencing extreme volatility and disruption for more than twelve months.
In recent weeks, the volatility and disruption have reached unprecedented levels. Stock markets in general, and our
stock prices in particular, have experienced significant volatility over the past year. Our stock recently traded at
historic lows. In the future, there can be no assurance that price volatility in stock markets in general will abate or that
our stock price in particular will rise. Additionally, the volatility in the credit markets could impact our ability to
access new financing or maintain our current debt.

We may not be able to extend, repay, or find alternatives to two critical loans that mature in September and October
2009.

In September 2008, we established a line of credit in an aggregate amount of $2.5 million with Bridge Bank, National
Association (“Bridge Bank”). Under the terms of the lending agreement, the line of credit terminates on September 3,
2009 (or earlier if elected by Bridge Bank under other provisions of the lending agreement). The outstanding balance
fluctuates from week to week, and as of December 31, 2008 was $2,029,000. On the termination date, the outstanding
balance will be due and payable immediately in full. In May 2008, we borrowed an aggregate of $1.5 million from
Montage Capital LLC and Agility Capital LLC (“Montage/Agility”). Under the terms of the loan agreement, we make
principal payments in the amount of $45,000, plus interest, per month. On October 1, 2009, the principal balance
outstanding at that date, anticipated to be $725,000, will be due and payable immediately in full. The Bridge Bank and
Montage/Agility loans are secured by liens on all our assets. We anticipate that we will not have sufficient cash on
hand to repay Bridge Bank on September 3, 2009 or Montage/Agility on October 1, 2009. If we are not able to extend
the loans or find alternative sources of funding by those dates, we may fall into default and become subject to
foreclosure on all of our assets, which would materially impair our ability to continue operations. We may not be
successful in extending or replacing the loans on favorable terms or at all.

Additional financing may be required for our future business and operations.

The Bridge Bank line of credit allows us to borrow against only a fraction of our shipments. Certain international
shipments in particular are not eligible for inclusion in the borrowing base of the Bridge Bank facility.  As a result of
these exclusions, the Bridge Bank loan balance has fallen below the $2.5 million loan limit since inception in
September 2008. Furthermore, as has been typical for our business, sales orders in the first quarter of 2009 were
concentrated in the last month of the quarter.  Reduced shipping levels in January and February of 2009 reduced our
allowable borrowing base, resulting in a required pay down of the line of credit to $2.0 million on February 28, 2009.
Moreover, the second significant source of working capital, the loan from Montage Capital LLC and Agility Capital
LLC, has decreased by regular principal payment amounts of $45,000 per month. As a result of these two factors, our
overall borrowing fell from a high of $3.1 million at year end to $2.6 million as of March 15, 2009. Should we fail to
ship sufficient product for whatever reason in a timely fashion, or if international sales accelerate significantly, a
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shortfall in working capital could occur due to an inability to borrow sufficient funds from Bridge Bank.  Additional
funds may be required to implement our business plan over the longer term. We may not be successful in raising such
additional capital on favorable terms or at all.

We have a history of operating losses and may incur future losses.

Although we made a net profit of $67,576 in 2008, our net losses were $0.7 million and $1.0 million for fiscal
years  2007 and 2006, respectively and we had an accumulated deficit of $−−−−19.0 million as of December 31, 2008
and $19.0 million as of December 31, 2007. Our losses have resulted principally from costs incurred in research and
development, and from sales and marketing, and general and administrative costs associated with operations.

Our ability to generate significant revenues and maintain profitability is dependent in large part on our ability to
expand our customer base, increase sales of our current products to existing customers, manage our expense growth,
and enter into additional supply, license and collaborative arrangements as well as on our ability to successfully
manufacture and commercialize products incorporating our technologies in new applications and in new markets.

4
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A significant portion of our total sales are made to one customer.

Sales to GE Healthcare under the previously announced OEM Supply Agreement accounted for approximately 18% of
our total sales in 2008. In May 2008 the supply agreement was extended through December 31, 2012. However, GE
Healthcare has no obligation to purchase any minimum amount of product from us and is free to reduce or stop
completely its purchases from us, which would significantly impact our financial results.

Recent changes to our global sales team may not achieve our intended goals.

In recent weeks, we added personnel in China and India to manage and direct our existing independent distributors
there and to find additional distributors. We have also added new distributors in Latin and South America. Our goals
for this expansion include, among others: providing a higher level of expertise to our customers, understanding better
their product needs, introducing more quickly new products, and accelerating sales growth. We cannot guarantee that
we will be successful in achieving these goals.

It may be difficult for us to compete with larger companies investing greater resources in development, marketing and
distribution of their products.

Our products face competition from other companies that have more financial resources, technical staff and
manufacturing and marketing capabilities than we do. Additionally, these and other potential competitors hold
intellectual property rights that could allow them to develop or sell the right to develop new products that could
compete effectively with our Gel Imaging and Microimaging systems. Many of these companies are larger than us and
enjoy several competitive advantages, including:

• significantly greater name recognition;

• established relationships with research institutions and pharmaceutical manufacturers;

• large, direct sales forces and established independent distribution networks;

• additional product lines and the ability to offer rebates, bundled products, and higher discounts or incentives;

•access to material information about our business, which we are required to publicly disclose, while not having to
disclose their own comparable information, because it is an immaterial part of their overall operations;

• greater experience in conducting research and development, manufacturing and marketing activities; and

• greater financial and human resources for product development, sales and marketing and litigation.

Because of these competitive advantages, these companies may be able to engage in aggressive practices that may
harm our business, without us being able to effectively respond.

Our business depends on research and development spending levels of pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies
and academic and governmental research institutions.

We expect that our revenues in the foreseeable future will be derived primarily from products and services provided to
pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies and academic, governmental and other research institutions. Our
success will depend upon their demand for and use of our products and services. Our operating results may fluctuate
substantially due to reductions and delays in research and development expenditures by these customers. These
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reductions and delays may result from factors that are not within our control, such as:

• changes in economic conditions, particularly as experienced on a worldwide basis in late 2008 and early 2009;

• changes in government programs that provide funding to companies and research institutions;

• changes in the regulatory environment affecting life sciences companies and life sciences research;

• market-driven pressures on companies to consolidate and reduce costs; and

• other factors affecting research and development spending.

5
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We depend on a limited number of suppliers and we will face delays in manufacturing of our products if shipments
from these suppliers are delayed or interrupted.

We depend on our vendors to provide components of our products in required volumes, at appropriate quality and
reliability levels, at certain prices and in compliance with regulatory requirements. If supplies from these vendors
were delayed or interrupted for any reason, we would not be able to produce or sell products in a timely fashion or in
sufficient quantities or under acceptable terms.

Our suppliers may encounter problems during manufacturing due to a variety of reasons, including interruption of
funding, failure to follow our protocols and procedures, financial instability, or equipment malfunction, any of which
could delay or impede their ability to meet our demand. Our reliance on these outside suppliers also subjects us to
other risks that could harm our business, including:

•we may not be able to obtain an adequate supply of quality raw materials or component parts in a timely manner or
on commercially reasonable terms;

•suppliers may make errors in manufacturing components that could negatively affect the performance of our product,
cause delays in shipment of our product or lead to returns;

•we may have difficulty locating and qualifying on a timely basis alternative suppliers for our single sourced supplies;

•switching components may require product redesign, which could significantly delay production;

•our suppliers manufacture products for a range of customers, and fluctuations in demand for the products these
suppliers manufacture for others may affect their ability to deliver components to us in a timely manner; and

•our suppliers may encounter financial hardships either related or unrelated to our demand for components, which
could inhibit their ability to fulfill our orders and meet our requirements.

Additionally, we may become involved in a contractual dispute with any one of these suppliers, or may be unable to
negotiate the renewal of an expiring contract, either of which could mean an interruption or delay in the supplied
component or material. Any interruption or delay in the supply of components or materials, or our inability to obtain
components or materials from alternate sources at acceptable prices in a timely manner, could impair our ability to
meet the demand of our customers and cause them to cancel orders or switch to competitive products, which would
harm our business.

Our dependence on contract manufacturing and outsourcing other portions of our supply chain may adversely affect
our ability to bring products to market.

As part of our efforts to streamline operations and to cut costs, we have been outsourcing and will continue to evaluate
additional outsourcing of certain operations. If our contract manufacturers or other outsourcers fail to perform their
obligations in a timely manner or at satisfactory quality levels, our ability to timely bring products to market could
suffer.

We may have warranty claims that exceed our reserves, which could adversely affect our operating results.

Our equipment carries a product warranty against defects in materials and workmanship. We have established a
warranty reserve based on anticipated failure and return rates for our product. Unforeseen changes in factors affecting
our estimates could occur and adversely affect our operating results.
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If we are unable to maintain our relationships with collaborative partners, we may have difficulty developing and
selling our products and services.

We believe that our success in penetrating our target markets depends in part on our ability to develop and maintain
collaborative relationships with companies that help us develop and sell products. Relying on these or other
collaborative relationships is risky to our future success because:

 •our partners may develop technologies or components competitive with our products;

•some of our agreements may terminate prematurely due to disagreements between us and our partners;

6
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•our partners may not devote sufficient resources to the development and sale of our products;

•our partners may be unable to provide the resources required for us to progress in the collaboration on a timely basis;

•our collaborations may be unsuccessful; or

•we may not be able to negotiate future collaborative arrangements on acceptable terms.

If we are unable to maintain our relationships with our selling and distribution partners, our growth and financial
results may be adversely affected.

As a small company, we must continue to nurture current and future distribution partners in order to continue to grow.
Any issue that materially affects our ability to deliver and support products with any of our current or future
distribution partners could significantly impact financial results. 

Due to the international nature of our business, changes in exchange rates, political or economic changes or other
factors could harm our business.

In fiscal 2008, 54% of our revenues were generated from sales outside the United States. Changes in exchange rates,
diplomatic and trade relationships may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
operating results or require us to modify our current business practices. For example, our sales are denominated in US
dollars, but due to exchange rate change we may be required to reduce prices to remain competitive.

We could fail in our efforts to expand our distribution and development activities in Asia.

We intend to expand our distribution channels in Asia and to seek third parties there to collaborate in offshore
development efforts. We have not had extensive operations in Asia and therefore may lack necessary expertise to
successfully increase our sales and development activities in the region or generate profits from such activities. Such
expansion plans may also require additional funding which may not be available on favorable terms, if at all. 

Third parties may claim that we are infringing their intellectual property, and we could suffer significant litigation or
licensing expenses or be prevented from selling products.

While we do not believe that any of our products infringe the valid intellectual property rights of third parties, we may
be unaware of intellectual property rights of others that may cover some of our technology, products or services. Any
litigation regarding patents or other intellectual property could be costly and time-consuming and could divert our
management and key personnel from our business operations. The complexity of the technology involved and the
uncertainty of intellectual property litigation increase these risks. Claims of intellectual property infringement might
also require us to enter into costly license agreements. However, we may not be able to obtain license agreements on
terms acceptable to us, or at all. We also may be subject to significant damages or injunctions against development
and sale of certain of our products.

Third parties may infringe our intellectual property, and we may expend significant resources enforcing our rights or
suffer competitive injury.

Our success depends in large part on our proprietary technology. We rely on a combination of patents, copyrights,
trademarks, trade secrets, confidentiality provisions and licensing arrangements to establish and protect our

Edgar Filing: ALPHA INNOTECH CORP - Form 10-K

18



proprietary rights. If we fail to successfully enforce our intellectual property rights, our competitive position could
suffer, which could harm our operating results.

Our pending trademark registration applications may not be allowed, or competitors may challenge the validity or
scope of our patents, copyrights or trademarks. In addition, our patents may not provide us a significant competitive
advantage.

We may be required to spend significant resources to monitor and police our intellectual property rights. We may not
be able to detect infringement and our competitive position may be harmed before we do so. In addition, competitors
may design around our technology or develop competing technologies. Intellectual property rights and our ability to
enforce them may also be unavailable or limited in some foreign countries, which could make it easier for competitors
to capture market share and result in lost revenues. These risks will become greater as we move forward with plans to
increase offshore development and manufacturing.  

7
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If we lose our key personnel or are unable to attract and retain additional skilled personnel, our business may suffer.

    We depend substantially on the principal members of our management, including Ronald Bissinger, Chief
Executive Officer. Any officer or employee can terminate his or her relationship with us at any time and work for one
of our competitors. Our ability to operate successfully and manage our potential future growth depends significantly
upon retaining key research, technical, sales, marketing, managerial and financial personnel, and attracting and
retaining additional highly qualified personnel in these areas. We face intense competition for such personnel from
numerous companies in the highly competitive northern California business area. The inability to attract and retain
these personnel could result in delays in the research, development and commercialization of our potential products.

To attract and retain qualified personnel, we may need to offer highly competitive salaries which would increase
future operating costs.

In the past, to attract and retain skilled personnel, we issued large stock option grants or other equity incentives.
However, we have found equity incentives to be less attractive in today’s uncertain business environment and record
low stock prices.  If we are instead required to pay highly competitive base salaries and cash bonuses to attract and
retain skilled personnel, our operating results would suffer.

We may engage in future acquisitions, which could be expensive and time consuming, and such acquisitions could
adversely affect your investment in us as we may never realize any benefits from such acquisitions.

We may seek to acquire technologies, products or companies to expand our business. If we do undertake any
transactions of this sort, the process of integrating an acquired business, technology, service or product may result in
operating difficulties and expenditures and may absorb significant management attention that would otherwise be
available for ongoing development of our business. Moreover, we may never realize the anticipated benefits of any
acquisition. Future acquisitions could result in potentially dilutive issuances of equity securities, the incurrence of debt
and contingent liabilities and amortization expenses related to other intangible assets or the impairment of goodwill,
which could adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Integrating technologies may be costly and may not result in technological advances.

We are working with collaborators to integrate certain technologies into future products. However, market advances
resulting from the integration of these technologies may not be achieved as successfully or rapidly as anticipated, if at
all.

If we suffer loss to our factories, facilities or distribution system due to catastrophe, our operations could be seriously
harmed.

Our factories, facilities and distribution system are subject to catastrophic loss due to fire, flood, terrorism or other
natural or man-made disasters. In particular, our production facilities and headquarters in California could be subject
to a catastrophic loss caused by earthquake. Although we outsource the manufacturing of some products and
components, final assembly, testing and storage have historically taken place at our San Leandro, California facilities.
If these facilities were to experience a catastrophic loss, it could disrupt our operations, delay production, shipments
and revenue and result in large expenses to repair or replace the facility. Although we carry insurance for property
damage and business interruption, we do not carry insurance or financial reserves for interruptions or potential losses
arising from earthquakes.
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Compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 entails significant expenditures and will materially
affect our financial results.

Effective internal reporting controls are necessary for us to provide reliable financial reports and effectively detect and
prevent fraud. Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, we are required beginning fiscal year
ending December 31, 2007 to include in our annual report our assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control
over financial reporting. Furthermore, our registered independent public accounting firm will be required to report on
our assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting and separately report on the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting beginning with our fiscal year ending December 31, 2009.
We completed our assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting, and complying with
this requirement required significant accounting, legal and other costs. Our assessment identified material weaknesses
in our internal controls for years ending December 31, 2008 and 2007. If our independent registered public accounting
firm cannot attest to our assessment, we could be subject to regulatory sanctions and a loss of public confidence. Also,
any lack of effective internal control over financial reporting may adversely impact our ability to prepare timely and
accurate financial statements.

8
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There is only a limited market for our common stock.

A limited public market currently exists for our common stock on the OTC Bulletin Board. Stocks traded on the OTC
Bulletin Board generally have limited trading volume and exhibit a wide spread between the bid/ask quotation.   In
addition, the stock market and the OTC Bulletin Board in particular, have experienced significant price and volume
fluctuations that have affected the market prices of companies in recent years. These fluctuations may continue to
occur and disproportionately impact the price of our common stock. In the past, following periods of volatility in the
market price of a company's securities, securities class-action litigation has often been instituted. While we are not
aware of any such litigation filed or pending against us, this type of litigation could result in substantial costs and a
diversion of management's attention and resources, which could materially affect our business, financial condition,
cash flows, or results of operations.

In the future, there can be no assurance that a more active public market for our common stock will ever develop or be
sustained, allowing you to sell large quantities of shares or all of your holdings. Consequently, you may not be able to
liquidate your investment in the event of an emergency or for any other reason.

Our directors, officers and principal stockholders have significant voting power and may take actions that may not be
in the best interests of our other stockholders.

 As of December 31, 2008, our officers, directors and principal stockholders each holding more than 5% of our
common stock collectively control approximately 69% of our outstanding common stock. As a result, these
stockholders, if they act together, are able to control the management and affairs of our company and most matters
requiring stockholder approval, including the election of directors and approval of significant corporate transactions.
This concentration of ownership may have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in control and might
adversely affect the market price of our common stock. This concentration of ownership may not be in the best
interests of our other stockholders.

Rules applicable to trading of our common stock reduce the level of trading in the secondary market for our stock and
as a result, investors may find it difficult to sell their shares.

Trades of our common stock are subject to Rule 15g-9 of the Securities and Exchange Commission, known as the
Penny Stock Rule. This rule imposes requirements on broker/dealers who sell securities subject to the rule to persons
other than established customers and accredited investors. For transactions covered by the rule, broker/dealers must
make a special suitability determination for purchasers of the securities and receive the purchaser’s written agreement
to the transaction prior to sale. The Securities and Exchange Commission also has rules that regulate broker/dealer
practices in connection with transactions in “penny stocks.” Penny stocks generally are equity securities with a price of
less than $5.00 (other than securities registered on certain national securities exchanges or quoted on the NASDAQ
system, provided that current price and volume information with respect to transactions in that security is provided by
the exchange or system). The Penny Stock Rule requires a broker/dealer, prior to a transaction in a penny stock not
otherwise exempt from the rules, to deliver a standardized risk disclosure document prepared by the Commission that
provides information about penny stocks and the nature and level of risks in the penny stock market. The
broker/dealer also must provide the customer with current bid and offer quotations for the penny stock, the
compensation of the broker/dealer and its salesperson in the transaction, and monthly account statements showing the
market value of each penny stock held in the customer’s account. The bid and offer quotations, and the broker/dealer
and salesperson compensation information, must be given to the customer orally or in writing prior to effecting the
transaction and must be given to the customer in writing before or with the customer’s confirmation. These disclosure
requirements have the effect of reducing the level of trading activity in the secondary market for our common stock.
As a result of these rules, investors may find it difficult to sell their shares.
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AVAILABLE INFORMATION

We make available free of charge on or through our Internet website our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports as soon as reasonably
practicable after they are electronically filed with, or furnished to, the Securities and Exchange Commission. Our
Internet website address is “www.alphainnotech.com”. The reference to our Internet website does not constitute
incorporation by reference of the information contained on or hyperlinked from our Internet website. Our filings are
also available online at the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) website on the Internet. The address of that
site is www.sec.gov. The materials are also available at the SEC's Public Reference Room, located at 100 F Street,
Washington, D.C. 20549. The public may also obtain information through the public reference room by calling the
SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Headquarters, manufacturing, and research and development are housed in 35,000 square feet of leased space in San
Leandro, California. This lease expires November 30, 2011. The basic rental rate is $40,816 per month plus $10,494
per month shared common cost.

Our existing facilities are not yet being used at full capacity and management believes that these facilities are adequate
and suitable for current and anticipated needs.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are not involved in any legal proceedings that would have a material adverse impact on our business, financial
condition or results of operations.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.

PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

For the periods indicated, the following table sets forth the high and low bid prices per share for our common stock, as
reported by OTCBB Reports. The prices represent inter-dealer quotations without retail markup, markdown, or
commission and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

Fiscal Year 2008 High Bid Low Bid
First Quarter  $ 0.90  $ 0.65
Second Quarter  $ 0.98  $ 0.65
Third Quarter  $ 0.98  $ 0.65
Fourth Quarter  $ 0.93  $ 0.35

Fiscal Year 2007 High Bid Low Bid
First Quarter  $ $1.30  $ 0.75
Second Quarter  $ 2.50  $ 0.86
Third Quarter  $ 1.31  $ 1.02
Fourth Quarter  $ 1.25  $ 0.70

Holders
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As of March 16, 2009, there were approximately 257 record owners of our common stock.
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Dividends

We have never paid cash dividends and have no plans to do so in the foreseeable future. Under the terms of our loan
agreement with Montage Capital LLC and Agility Capital LLC, we may not pay or declare dividends without their
prior written consent. Our future dividend policy will be determined by our board of directors and will depend upon a
number of factors, including our financial condition and performance, our cash needs and expansion plans, income tax
consequences, and the restrictions that applicable laws, our current preferred stock instruments, and our future credit
arrangements may then impose.

Sale of Unregistered Securities

None

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Not applicable to smaller reporting companies.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes. Certain statements
made in this report may constitute forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties, such as statements
of our plans, objectives, expectations and intentions. Any statements that are not statements of historical fact are
forward-looking statements. When used, the words “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “plan,” and similar
expressions identify certain of these forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are subject to
risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results or events to differ materially from those expressed or implied by
the forward-looking statements in this Form 10-K. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these
forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date hereof. Alpha Innotech does not undertake any obligation
to update forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances occurring after the date of this filing. Our
actual results could differ materially from those anticipated by these forward-looking statements due to factors,
including, but not limited to, those set forth under “Risks Factors” and elsewhere in this report.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based upon our consolidated
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities. Alpha Innotech bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other
assumptions that it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making
judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. In
addition, estimates and assumptions about future events and their effects cannot be determined with certainty. These
estimates and assumptions may change as new events occur, as additional information is obtained and as our operating
environment changes. These changes have been included in the consolidated financial statements as soon as they
became known. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. In addition,
we are periodically faced with uncertainties, the outcomes of which are not within our control and may not be known
for extended periods of time. These uncertainties are discussed in this report in the section entitled “Risk Factors.”
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Our critical accounting policies are set forth below.

Revenue Recognition

Our revenue is derived from the sale of digital imaging systems and other products, net of returns and allowances and
is recognized when a contract is executed, all delivery obligations have been met, the fee is fixed and determinable,
and collectibility is probable. All products are sold with a 1-year standard warranty agreement and we record an
associated reserve for estimated warranty costs.

11
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For products sold where software is deemed to be more than incidental, we follow Statement of Position (“SOP”) 97-2,
“Software Revenue Recognition,” as amended. Revenue earned on software arrangements involving multiple elements
is allocated to each element based on vendor-specific objective evidence, which is based on the price charged when
the same element is sold separately. When a digital imaging system is sold, the multiple elements are software and
maintenance and support. Revenue allocated to software is recognized when a contract is executed, all delivery
obligations have been met, the fee is fixed and determinable, and collection is probable. Revenue allocated to
maintenance and support is recognized ratably over the maintenance term, typically for a period of one year,
beginning when a digital imaging system is considered sold or an extended maintenance and support contract is
signed.

Revenue is recorded net of estimated returns. Our management makes estimates of potential future product returns
related to current period revenue. We analyze historical returns, current economic trends and changes in our customer
demand and acceptance of our product when evaluating the adequacy of our allowance for sales returns and other
allowances, such as allowance for bad debts, in any accounting period. As of December 31, 2008, our allowance for
sales returns was $52,436 and our allowance for doubtful accounts was $5,000.

Inventory

We record inventories at the lower of cost or market value, with cost generally determined on a first-in, first-out basis.
We perform periodic valuation assessments based on projected sales forecasts and analysis of upcoming changes in
future configurations of our products, and record inventory write-downs for excess and obsolete inventory. As of
December 31, 2008, our allowance for excess and obsolete inventory was $46,612.

Deferred Taxes Valuation Allowance

We believe sufficient uncertainties exist regarding the future realization of deferred tax assets, and, accordingly, a full
valuation allowance is required, amounting to $5,619,303 at December 31, 2008. In subsequent periods if and when
we generate pre-tax income, a tax expense will not be recorded to the extent that the remaining valuation allowance
can be used to offset that expense. Once a consistent pattern of pre-tax income is established or other events occur that
indicate that the deferred tax assets will be realized, additional portions or all of the remaining valuation allowance
will be reversed back to income. Should we generate pre-tax losses in subsequent periods, a tax benefit will not be
recorded and the valuation allowance will be increased. Despite the valuation allowance, we retain the ability to utilize
the benefits of net operating loss carryforwards and research and development credits.

 Impairment of Long-lived Assets

The Company reviews long-lived assets, including property and equipment and intangibles, for impairment whenever
events or changes in business circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be fully
recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized when estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to
result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition is less than its carrying amount. Impairment, if any, is
measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of a long-lived asset exceeds its fair value. The Company
considers various valuation factors, principally discounted cash flows, to assess the fair values of long-lived assets. To
date, the Company has not recorded any impairment losses.

Warranty

The Company records an accrual for estimated warranty costs when revenue is recognized. Warranty covers
replacement costs of defective equipment. The warranty period is one year. The Company has processes in place to
estimate accruals for warranty exposure. The processes include estimated failure rates and replacement costs, and
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known design changes. Although the Company believes it has the ability to reasonably estimate warranty expenses,
unforeseen changes in factors impacting the estimate for warranty could occur and such changes could cause a
material change in the Company’s warranty accrual estimate. Such a change would be recorded in the period in which
the change was identified.
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Share-Based Employee Compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of FASB Statement No. 123(R),
Share-Based Payment, (“SFAS 123(R)”) using the modified prospective transition method. Under that transition
method, compensation cost recognized for the periods ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 includes: (a) compensation
cost for all share-based payments granted prior to, but not yet vested as of January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair
value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of FASB Statement No. 123,  Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation (“SFAS 123”), and (b) compensation cost for all share-based payments granted or modified subsequent to
January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123(R).

Share-based compensation expense for performance-based options granted to non-employees is determined in
accordance with SFAS 123(R) and Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 96-18, Accounting for Equity Instruments
that are Issued to Other than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services (EITF
96-18”), at the fair value of the consideration received or the fair value of the equity instruments issued, whichever is
more reliably measured. The fair value of options granted to non-employees is measured as of the earlier of the
performance commitment date or the date at which performance is complete (“measurement date”). When it is necessary
under generally accepted accounting principles to recognize the cost for the transaction prior to the measurement date,
the fair value of unvested options granted to non-employees is remeasured at the balance sheet date.

The following table presents share-based compensation expense included in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations:

Twelve Months Ended
December 31,

2008 2007
Cost of goods sold  $ 23,597  $ 2,441
Sales and marketing 160,016 122,363
Research and development 71,763 44,513
General and administrative 298,104 217,328
Total share-based compensation  $ 553,480  $ 386,645

As of December 31, 2008, $699,279 of total unrecognized share-based compensation expense related to non-vested
options is expected to be recognized over the respective vesting terms of each option grant through August 19, 2012.
The weighted average term of the unrecognized share-based compensation is 2.73 years.  As of December 31, 2008,
$185,495 of total unrecognized share-based compensation expense related to non-vested restricted shares is expected
to be recognized over the remaining life of the grant through February 14, 2010.

 In the twelve months ended December 31, 2008, no share-based compensation expense was capitalized and there
were no recognized tax benefits associated with the stock-based compensation charge. The stock-based compensation
charge did not significantly impact basic and diluted net loss per share in the twelve months ended December 31,
2008. During the twelve months ended December 31, 2008, no significant compensation costs related to the
share-based awards to employees was recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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    The following table summarizes the Company’s non-vested stock option activity for the year ended December 31,
2008:

Number of
Shares

Weighted
Average
Grant Date
Fair Value

Non-vested stock outstanding at January 1, 2008 790,306  $ 1.10
Granted 491,000  $ 0.93
Vested (447,642)  $ 1.06
Forfeited (10,125)  $ 0.86
Non-vested stock outstanding at December 31, 2008 823,539  $ 1.03

Total fair value of non-vested shares is $847,149 and $873,003 for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively.

The Company estimates the fair value of stock options using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. Key input
assumptions used to estimate the fair value of stock options include the exercise price of the award, expected option
term, expected volatility of the stock over the option’s expected term, risk-free interest rate over the option’s expected
term, and the expected annual dividend yield. The Company believes that the valuation technique and approach
utilized to develop the underlying assumptions are appropriate in calculating the fair values of the stock options
granted in the twelve months ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.

For these options, the Company calculated the fair value of each option on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
Option pricing model as prescribed in SFAS No. 123 using the following assumptions:

2008 2007
Risk-free interest 3.83%-4.16% 4.37%-5.09%
Expected life 6.25 Years 10 Years
Expected volatility 111%-168% 157%-199%
Expected dividend — —

    The expected life was determined based on the options vesting period and exercise behavior of the employees.

    Activity under the Company’s stock plans for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 is as follows:

Shares

Weighted
-Average
Exercise
Price per
Share

Weighted-Average
Remaining
Contractual

Terms in Years

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value

Outstanding at January 1, 2007 880,821  $ 2.30
Grants 700,800  $ 0.99
Forfeitures (98,586)  $ 1.03
Expirations (149,321)  $ 2.60
Outstanding at December 31, 2007 1,333,714  $ 1.68
Grants 491,000  $ 0.93
Forfeitures (10,125)  $ 0.86
Expirations (7,004)  $ 7.80
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Outstanding at December 31, 2008 1,807,585  $ 1.45 7.6  $ —
Exercisable at December 31, 2008 984,046  $ 1.79 6.6  $ —
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2008 1,807,585  $ 1.45 7.6  $ —

14

Edgar Filing: ALPHA INNOTECH CORP - Form 10-K

32



The aggregate intrinsic value is the total pretax intrinsic value (i.e., the difference between the Company’s closing
stock price on the last trading day of its fourth quarter of 2008 and the exercise price, multiplied by the number of
in-the-money options) that would have been received by the option holders had all option holders exercised their
options as of that date. The Company’s closing stock price on December 31, 2008 was $0.70.

Income (Loss) Per Share

 Basic net income (loss) per share to common shareholders is calculated based on the weighted-average number of
shares of common stock outstanding during the period excluding those shares that are subject to repurchase by the
Company. Diluted net income (loss) per share attributable to common shareholders would give effect to the dilutive
effect of potential common stock consisting of stock options, warrants, and preferred stock. Dilutive securities have
been excluded from the diluted net loss per share computations as they have an antidilutive effect due to the
Company’s net loss.

 The following outstanding stock options, warrants, common stock subject to repurchase by the Company, and
preferred stock (on an as-converted into common stock basis) were excluded from the computation of diluted net
income (loss) per share attributable to holders of common stock as they had an antidilutive effects of December 31,
2007:

2007
Shares issuable upon exercise of warrants 336,934

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

In January 2009, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF)
99-20-1 ”Amendments to the Impairment Guidance of EITF Issue No. 99-20” To achieve more consistent determination
of whether an other-than-temporary impairment has occurred.  The provisions of FSP EITF 99-20-1 will be applied
for interim and annual reporting periods ending after December 15, 2008. The Company does not believe SFP EITF
99-20-1 will have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In June 2008, the FASB issued EITF 07-5 “Determining Whether an Instrument (or Embedded Feature) is Indexed to
an Entity’s Own Stock.”  The provisions of EITF 07-5 became effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2008.  The Company does not believe EITF 07-5 will have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

In February 2008, the FASB issued FSP Financial Accounting Standard (FAS) 157-1, “Application of FASB Statement
No. 157 to FASB Statement No. 13 and Its Related Interpretive Accounting Pronouncements That Address Leasing
Transactions,” and FSP FAS 157-2, “Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157.” FSP FAS 157-1 removes leasing from
the scope of SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” FSP FAS 157-2 delays the effective date of SFAS No. 157
from 2008 to 2009 for all nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed
at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis, at least annually.

In September 2006, the FASB finalized SFAS No. 157 which became effective January 1, 2008 except as amended by
FSP FAS 157-1 and FSP FAS 157-2 as described above. This Statement defines fair value, establishes a framework
for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements; however, it does not require any new
fair value measurements. The provisions of SFAS No. 157 were applied prospectively to fair value measurements and
disclosures for financial assets and financial liabilities and nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities recognized
or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on at least an annual basis beginning in the first quarter of 2008.
The adoption of SFAS No. 157 did not have a material effect on the condensed consolidated financial statements for
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fair value measurements made during the first quarter of 2008. While the Company does not expect the adoption of
SFAS No. 157 to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements in subsequent reporting periods, the
company continues to monitor any additional implementation guidance that is issued that addresses the fair value
measurements for certain financial assets and nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities not disclosed at fair value
in the consolidated financial statements on at least an annual basis.

In May 2008, the FASB released SFAS No. 162, “The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.” SFAS
No. 162 identifies the sources of accounting principles and the framework for selecting the principles used in the
preparation of financial statements of nongovernmental entities that presented in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States of America. SFAS No. 162 will be effective 60 days following the SEC’s
approval of the PCAOB amendments to AU Section 411, The Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. The Company does not believe SFAS No. 162 will have a significant
impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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In June 2008, the FASB issued Staff Position FSP EITF No. 03-6-1, “Determining Whether Instruments Granted in
Share-Based Payment Transactions are Participating Securities” (“FSP EITF 03-6-1”). The FSP provides that unvested
share-based payment awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents (whether paid or
unpaid) are participating securities and shall be included in the computation of earnings per share pursuant to the
two-class method. The FSP is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years. Upon adoption, a company is required to retrospectively adjust its
earnings per share data (including and amounts related to interim periods, summaries of earnings and selected
financial data) to conform to the provisions in the FSP. Early application of the FSP is prohibited. The adoption of
FSP No. EITF 03-6-1 is not anticipated to have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.

Overview

Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007

Revenues

Our revenues are primarily derived from sales of instruments, software, consumables, and service contracts. Revenues
for the year ended December 31, 2008 increased $2,286,765 or 15% from $15,321,729 for the year ended
December 31, 2007, to $17,608,494 for the year ended December 31, 2008. The growth in sales from 2007 to 2008 is
attributable to an overall increase in sales of our branded products worldwide, offset in part by a decrease in sales to
GE Healthcare. We do not expect the level of sales to GE Healthcare to increase back to their former levels in the near
future. 

Revenues outside of the United States represented 54% of our total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2008
and 53% of our total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2007. For the year ended December 31, 2008,
increases in direct domestic sales accounted for $1.3 million, or 19% and indirect international sales for $1.4 million
or 29%.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold includes direct material, labor and manufacturing overhead. Cost of goods sold for the year ended
December 31, 2008 increased $1,106,711 or 16% to $7,991,743, from $6,885,032 for the year ended December 31,
2007. The increase resulted primarily from higher sales.   

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the year ending December 31, 2008 increased $1,180,054 or 14%, to $9,616,751, from $8,436,697 for
the year ended December 31, 2007. The increase resulted primarily from higher sales. The gross profit as a percentage
of revenues remained at 55% for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.

Sales and Marketing Expenses

Sales and marketing expenses for the year ended December 31, 2008 increased $314,350 or 6%, to $5,188,216, from
$4,873,866 for the year ended December 31, 2007. The increase resulted primarily from expansion of international
sales and marketing efforts. The overall increase includes increases in international wages, travel and entertainment,
and distributor commissions. Domestic sales spending decreased, primarily due to reductions in costs to recruit
employees as most were hired in 2007. Sales and marketing expenses as a percentage of revenues decreased from 32%
for the year ended December 31, 2007 to 30% for the year ended December 31, 2008. Revenues increased faster than
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selling costs.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses for the year ended December 31, 2008 increased $20,994 or 2%, to $1,343,752
from $1,322,758 for the year ended December 31, 2007. This increase in research and development spending was
primarily due to increased wages and related spending. Research and development expenses as a percentage of
revenues decreased from 9% for the year ended December 31, 2007 to 8% for the year ended December 31, 2008.
This decrease was due to higher revenues.
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General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2008 decreased $402 or less than 1%, to
$2,594,534 from $2,594,936 for the year ended December 31, 2007. Decreases in founder's bonus, severance and
bonus were nearly offset by increases in outside professional services for Sarbanes-Oxley compliance, legal,
accounting and other consultants, as well as increased travel. The general and administrative expenses as a percentage
of revenues decreased from 17% for the year ended December 31, 2007 to 15% for the year ended December 31, 2008
as a result of increased revenues.

Other Income (Expense)

Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2008 increased $212,067 or 71% to $511,616 from $299,549 for the
year ended December 31, 2007. The increase in interest expense resulted primarily from additional borrowing from
new debt facilities with Montage Capital, Agility Capital and Bridge Bank. During 2008 there was a sale of a patent
for $100,000 with no corresponding transaction in 2007.

Off-Balance-Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2008, we did not have any off-balance-sheet arrangements, as defined in Item 303(a)(4)(ii) of
SEC Regulation S-K.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We had $648,757 in cash and cash equivalents, and $50,000 in restricted cash as of December 31, 2008. We are
investing our cash and cash equivalents in money market funds and various deposit accounts. We have limited capital
resources and operations to date have been funded primarily with the proceeds from private equity and debt
financings. From inception through December 31, 2007, we raised a total of $1,956,076 net of offering costs in
convertible notes that were converted into redeemable convertible preferred stock in 2004, a total of $7,615,319 net of
offering costs from the sale of redeemable convertible preferred stock, a total of $375,000 from the sale of a
convertible note, and $107,549 net of offering costs from the issuance of common stock. As a result of the closing of
the merger with Xtrana, in 2005 we received an additional $2,033,000 in cash. In addition, we have a working capital
deficit of $943,742.

Our ability to generate significant revenues and maintain profitability is dependent in large part on our ability to
expand our customer base, increase sales of our current products to existing customers, manage our expense growth,
and enter into additional supply, license and collaborative arrangements as well as on our ability to successfully
manufacture and commercialize products incorporating our technologies in new applications and in new markets. As a
result of these and other factors, our independent registered public accountants, Rowbotham and Company LLP,
indicated, in their report on our 2008 financial statements, that there is substantial doubt about our ability to continue
as a going concern. 

At December 31, 2008, we had the following capital resources available:

Loans from Bridge Bank - On September 3, 2008, the Company entered into a Business Financing Agreement (the
“Business Financing Agreement”) and a Borrower Agreement (the “Borrower Agreement”, and together with the Business
Financing Agreement, the “Bridge Bank Loan Agreements”) with Bridge Bank, National Association (“Bridge Bank”).
The Company used the proceeds from the loan for general corporate purposes and to retire certain of its other
outstanding debt obligations including the BFI Business Finance line of credit. Under the Bridge Bank Loan
Agreements, the Company may receive a maximum of $2,500,000 ($1,250,000 under the domestic accounts
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receivable facility and $1,250,000 under the foreign accounts receivable facility, subject to certain limitations.)  The
loan has a term of twelve months, starting September 3, 2008.  The loan will have a finance charge equal to the prime
rate listed in the Wall Street Journal plus 1.25% (the “Prime Rate”) annualized on the average daily financed amount
outstanding.  The Prime Rate floats and has a floor of 4.75%. The Company paid Bridge Bank $12,600 and $50,000 to
BroadOak for a total of $62,600 in loan fees. Interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 was
$34,197 and $0, respectively. The loan is secured by a first position lien against all corporate assets. At December 31,
2008, the amount of unused line of credit was $154,653.
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Loan from Agility Capital LLC and Montage Capital LLC - On May 9, 2008,  the Company entered into a loan
agreement (“Loan Agreement”)  with Montage Capital, LLC (“Montage”) and Agility Capital, LLC (“Agility”, and together
with Montage, “Montage/Agility”). Under the Loan Agreement, the Company requested one advance of $1,500,000
from Montage/Agility which bears interest at a rate of 13% per year and is due on October 31, 2009 (the “Maturity
Date”). The Company paid Montage/Agility $37,500 in loan fees. As of December 31, 2008, a total of $415,000 of the
principal amount of the note had been repaid. Interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 was
$132,096 and $0, respectively, excluding debt discount. The loan is secured by a second position lien against all
corporate assets.

ETP/FBR Venture Capital II, LLC Convertible Note - On July 21, 2006, pursuant to a Securities Purchase Agreement
(the “Purchase Agreement”) between the Company and ETP/FBR Venture Capital II, LLC (the “Purchaser”), the
Company completed a private placement offering of a subordinated Senior Convertible Note in the principal amount
of $375,000 (the “Note”) and a warrant to purchase 125,000 shares of the Company’s common stock (the “Warrant”)(See
Note 7, Common Stock). The Note bears interest at a rate of 3% per year and is due on July 20, 2011. Interest expense
accrued on the note for the year ended December 31, 2008 was $8,214. During the occurrence of an "Event of
Default" under the Note, the Note will bear interest at a rate of 10% per year. The Note is convertible into shares of
common stock of the Company at an initial conversion price of $1.60 per share of common stock. The Warrant is
exercisable at the price of $1.20 per share. William Snider, a director of the Company, is a general partner of the
Purchaser. William Snider was a general partner of ETP/FBR Venture Capital LLC, which currently owns
approximately 14.2% of common stock of the Company. Interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2008 and
2007 was $9,011 and $30,596, respectively, excluding debt discount. The Note is unsecured.

Cash provided by (used in) operating activities was $(653,653) and $594,912 for the years ending December 31, 2008
and December 31, 2007, respectively. During 2008, net profit, net of non-cash expenses provided cash of $1,274,728.
This was offset by $1,928,381 increase in working capital other than cash. During 2007, the cash provided by
operating activities was primarily due to a net profit of $310,292, net of adjusted non cash expenses, and a positive
working capital of $284,620.  The non-cash expense items included depreciation and amortization expense of
$601,181 and imputed cost of stock based compensation of $386,645 offset by a net loss of $661,737.

Cash used in investing activities was $364,760 and $508,596 for the years ending December 31, 2008 and
December 31, 2007, respectively. Cash was used to purchase property and equipment needed to support our
operations including costs of demonstration systems used by our sales teams and which, in some cases, are ultimately
sold to customers.

Cash provided by (used in) financing activities was $1,499,432 and $(364,234) for the years ending December 31,
2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively. In the year ending December 31, 2008, $1,500,000 cash was received
through new borrowing from Montage/Agility, net line of credit proceeds from Bridge Bank of $822,032 and
proceeds of $142,500 from sale of stock. The borrowing was offset in part by payment of loan fees and repayment of
borrowings from Montage/Agility, Alexandria Finance, and ETP/FBR Venture Capital II, LLC. In the year ending
December 31, 2007, $232,162 was provided by increased borrowing under a line of credit from BFI Business Finance,
$3,604 was provided from exercise of warrants, and $600,000 was used to pay down principal owing under the loan
from Alexandria Finance.

The Bridge Bank line of credit allows us to borrow against only a fraction of our shipments to a maximum of $2.5
million.   Certain international shipments in particular are not eligible for inclusion in the borrowing base of the
Bridge Bank facility.  As a result of these exclusions, the Bridge Bank loan balance has remained below the $2.5
million loan limit since inception in September 2008. Furthermore, the second significant source of working capital,
the loan from Montage Capital LLC and Agility Capital LLC, decreases by a principal payment amount of $45,000
per month.   Should we fail to ship sufficient product for whatever reason in a timely fashion, or if international sales
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accelerate significantly, a shortfall in working capital could occur due to an inability to borrow sufficient funds from
Bridge Bank.  We may require additional capital resources in order to conduct our operations and develop our
products. We estimate that our capital resources will be sufficient to fund our current level of operations over the near
term. However, additional funds may be required to implement our business plan over the longer term. We may not be
successful in raising such additional capital on favorable terms or at all. The sale of equity or convertible debt
securities in the future may be dilutive to our stockholders, and debt financing arrangements may require the
Company to pledge certain assets and enter into covenants that could restrict certain business activities or our ability
to incur further indebtedness and may contain other terms that are not favorable to us or our stockholders. If we are
unable to obtain adequate funds on reasonable terms, we may be required to curtail operations significantly or to
obtain funds by entering into financing agreements on unattractive terms.

The Bridge Bank line of credit terminates September 3, 2009. The balance of the loan from Montage/Agility
outstanding on October 1, 2009 is due and payable on that day. Worldwide economic conditions and the overall
lending environment have deteriorated significantly since these loans were first secured in 2008. We cannot guarantee
that we will be able to extend, renew or replace these borrowings on favorable terms or at all.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Alpha Innotech Corp.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Alpha Innotech Corp. and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in
shareholders’ deficit, and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have,
nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal controls over financial reporting. Our audits included
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with United States generally accepted accounting principles.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as
a going concern. As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has incurred losses
from operations prior to 2008, was unable to generate positive cash flows from operations in 2008, and has both a
working capital and a shareholders’ deficit at December 31, 2008, that raise substantial doubt about its ability to
continue as a going concern. Management’s plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note 1. The
consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this
uncertainty.

/s/ Rowbotham and Company LLP

San Francisco, California
March 24, 2009
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ALPHA INNOTECH CORP.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007

2008 2007
Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 648,757  $ 167,738
Restricted cash 50,000 50,113
Accounts receivable, net 3,032,980 2,229,698
Inventory, net 1,464,566 1,006,085
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 154,891 218,780
Total current assets 5,351,194 3,672,414
Property and equipment, net 789,876 914,383
Loan costs, net 119,432 —
Other assets 90,232 90,232
Total assets  $ 6,350,734  $ 4,677,029

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Deficit
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable  $ 879,648  $ 1,785,909
Accrued liabilities 1,110,010 1,329,860
Current portion of debt 2,935,565 1,406,968
Deferred revenue 1,217,322 1,027,006
Other liabilities 152,391 265,526
Total current liabilities 6,294,936 5,815,269

Debt, net of current portion 152,275 307,938
Commitments and contingencies — —
Shareholders’ deficit:
Common stock, $0.01 par value per share: 50,000,000 shares authorized, 10,922,136
and 10,462,576 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively 109,222 104,626
Additional paid-in capital 18,770,191 17,492,662
Accumulated deficit (18,967,822) (19,035,398)
Treasury stock (8,068) (8,068)
Total shareholders’ deficit (96,477) (1,446,178)
Total liabilities and shareholders’ deficit  $ 6,350,734  $ 4,677,029

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ALPHA INNOTECH CORP.
Consolidated Statements of Operations

For the Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007

2008 2007
Revenue $17,608,494 $15,321,729
Cost of goods sold 7,991,743 6,885,032
Gross profit 9,616,751 8,436,697
Operating costs and expenses:
Sales and marketing 5,188,216 4,873,866
Research and development 1,343,752 1,322,758
General and administrative 2,594,534 2,594,936
Total operating costs and expenses 9,126,502 8,791,560
Income (loss) from operations 490,249 (354,863)
Other income (expense):
Interest expense (511,616) (299,549)
Sale of patent 100,000 —
Other income (expense), net (11,057) (7,325)
Total other income (expense) (422,673) (306,874)
Net income (loss) $67,576 $(661,737 )
Net income (loss) per share:
Basic $0.01 $(0.06 )
Diluted $0.01 $(0.06 )
Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic 10,808,828 10,373,426
Diluted 11,067,217 10,373,426

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ALPHA INNOTECH CORP.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Deficit

For the Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007

Common Stock Treasury Stock
Number

of
Shares Amount

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Number
of Shares Amount

Accumulated
Deficit Total

Balance at
January 1, 2007 9,891,393  $ 98,914  $ 17,108,125 4,746  $ (8,068)  $ (18,373,661)  $ (1,174,690)
Issuance of
restricted shares 530,000 5,300 (5,300) — — — —
Exercise of
warrants 41,183 412 3,192 — — — 3,604
FAS 123 (R)
Share-based
compensation — — 386,645 — — — 386,645
Net loss — — — — — (661,737) (661,737)
Balance at
December 31,
2007 10,462,576 104,626 17,492,662 4,746 (8,068) (19,035,398) (1,446,178)
Issuance of
common stock 250,000 2,500 210,000 — — — 212,500
Issuance of
warrants — — 339,509 — — — 339,509
Issuance of stock
options to
vendors — — 8,989 — — — 8,989
FAS 123 (R)
Share-based
compensation — — 553,479 — — — 553,479
Issuance of
restricted shares 209,560 2,096 165,552 — — — 167,648
Net income — — — — — 67,576 67,576
Balance at
December 31,
2008 10,922,136  $ 109,222  $ 18,770,191 4,746  $ (8,068)  $ (18,967,822)  $ (96,477)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ALPHA INNOTECH CORP.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007

2008 2007
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss)  $ 67,576  $ (661,737)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization 534,379 601,181
Allowance for sales returns and doubtful accounts (80,855) (12,320)
Allowance for excess and obsolete inventory 81 4,698
Provision for demo equipment (45,000) (8,175)
Amortization of loan fees 73,828 —
Amortization of debt issuance costs 162,251 —
Share-based compensation 553,480 386,645
Stock and warrants issued in lieu of payment 8,988 —
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivables (722,427) (27,968)
Inventory (458,562) (377,231)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 63,890 (29,256)
Other assets — 1,075
Accounts payable (906,261) 177,623
Accrued liabilities 17,798 354,194
Deferred revenue 190,316 131,131
Other liabilities (113,135) 55,052
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (653,653) 594,912
Cash flows from investing activities:
Restricted cash 113 (50,113)
Purchase of property and equipment (364,873) (458,483)
Net cash used in investing activities (364,760) (508,596)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Lines of credit, net 822,032 232,162
Proceeds from debt obligation 1,500,000 —
Repayment of debt obligation (815,000) (600,000)
Payment of loan fees (150,100) —
Proceeds from exercise of warrants — 3,604
Proceeds from sale of stock 142,500 —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 1,499,432 (364,234)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 481,019 (277,918)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 167,738 445,656
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  $ 648,757  $ 167,738

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Interest paid during the year  $ 316,115  $ 299,549
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing activities:
Issuance of restricted shares at par value  $ — $ 5,300
Issuance of common stock warrants  $ 339,509  $ —

Edgar Filing: ALPHA INNOTECH CORP - Form 10-K

46



The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ALPHA INNOTECH CORP.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007

1.         Summary of Significant Accounting Practices  

Nature of Operations - Alpha Innotech Corporation was incorporated and began operations in June 1992, in the state
of California, with facilities in San Leandro, California. Xtrana, Inc. was incorporated in January 1987 in the state of
Delaware. On October 3, 2005, Alpha Innotech Corporation was acquired by Xtrana, Inc. In the transactions, Alpha
Innotech Corporation merged with a subsidiary of Xtrana, Inc. and became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Xtrana, Inc.
Xtrana, Inc. changed its corporate name to Alpha Innotech Corp. and obtained a new trading symbol APNO.OB. We
formed Alpha Innotech Hong Kong Limited, incorporated under the laws of in Hong Kong November 13, 2008. On
December 12, 2008, 100% ownership of Alpha Innotech Hong Kong Limited was transferred to us from its
incorporator and it is now our wholly-owned subsidiary. The assets, liabilities, equity and operations of this entity are
not material.

Alpha Innotech Corp. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) develop and market both macro imaging and micro imaging
systems. The macro imaging systems are used for image documentation, quantitative analysis, and image archiving.
These systems are used with electrophoresis samples (gel, blots, autoradiographs, etc), microscopy applications, and
general imaging from insects to culture plates. The micro imaging systems address the micro array, multiplex array
and cell based markets. Researchers use the microimaging products to analyze slides or multi-well microplates printed
with genomic, proteomic or cellular samples and in some cases, fixed cell cultures.

Going Concern - The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis
that contemplates the realization of assets and discharge of liabilities in the normal course of business. The Company
has incurred losses from operations prior to 2008, was unable to generate positive cash from operations in 2008, and
has both a working capital deficiency and a shareholder’s deficit. These conditions raise substantial doubts about the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments to reflect the possible future effects on the recoverability and classification of assets or the amounts and
classification of liabilities that may result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

Management’s Plan – For the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company generated net income of $67,576 and raised
cash through additional borrowing, ending the year with $648,757 in cash and cash equivalents. Management plans to
continue to grow revenues, manage expenses, and extend, renew or replace the Bridge Bank line of credit prior to its
termination date of September 3, 2009, and to extend, renew or replace the Montage/Agility loan prior to its maturity
October 31, 2009.

Failure to generate sufficient revenues, raise additional capital or reduce certain discretionary spending could have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s ability to achieve its intended business objectives.

Basis of Presentation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Principles of Consolidation - The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Alpha Innotech
Corp. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All significant transactions and balances between the Company and its
subsidiaries have been eliminated in consolidation.
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Uses of Estimates - The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments - The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable,
accounts payable, accrued liabilities, and other liabilities approximate fair value due to the short maturities of these
instruments. The carrying fair value debt approximate fair value, as interest is tied to or approximates market rate.
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Foreign Currencies - The United States dollar is the reporting currency for the Company. The functional currency
used by Alpha Innotech Hong Kong Limited is the local currency. Assets and liabilities recorded in foreign currencies
are translated at the exchange rate at the balance sheet date. Revenue and expenses are translated at average rates of
exchange prevailing during the year. Translation adjustments resulting from this process are charged or credited to
other comprehensive income.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - For purposes of reporting cash flows, the Company considers all short-term,
interest-bearing deposits with original matures of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash
equivalents include money market funds and various deposit accounts.

Restricted Cash – Represents the required amount to be on deposit with a bank for as long as certain credit cards issued
to the Company are outstanding.

Inventories - Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, cost being determined using the first-in, first out
(“FIFO”) method. Reserves are established for excess or obsolete inventories.

Property and Equipment - Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives of the related assets principally using the straight-line method: 18 months for demo
and loaner equipment, 3 years for computer hardware and software, 5 to 7 years for furniture, fixture and equipment.
Leasehold improvements are recorded at cost. Amortization is provided using the straight-line method over the shorter
of their estimated useful lives or the term of the lease. Upon retirement or sale, the cost and related accumulated
depreciation are removed from the balance sheet and the resulting gain or loss is reflected in other income and
expense. Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred.

Income Taxes - Income taxes are accounted for using the asset and liability approach whereby deferred tax assets and
liabilities are determined based on differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities
and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to
reverse. The Company provides a valuation allowance for deferred taxes for which it does not consider realization of
such assets to be more likely than not. At December 31, 2008 and 2007, a full valuation has been established for the
deferred tax assets, as management believes that it is more likely than not that a tax benefit will not be realized.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets - The Company evaluates its long-lived assets for indications of possible impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability is measured by comparison of the carrying amounts to the future net undiscounted cash flows, which
the assets are expected to generate. Should an impairment exist, the impairment would be measured by the amount by
which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the projected discounted future cash flows arising from the asset.
There have been no such impairments of long-lived assets through December 31, 2008 and 2007.

Revenue Recognition - The Company’s revenue is derived from the sale of digital imaging systems, net of returns and
allowances, and is generally recognized when a contract is executed, all delivery obligations have been met, the fee is
fixed and determinable, and collectability is probable. All products are sold with a one-year warranty agreement and
the Company records an associated reserve for estimated warranty costs.

For products sold where software is deemed to be more than incidental, the Company follows Statement of Position
(“SOP”) 97-2, “Software Revenue Recognition,” as amended. Revenue earned on software arrangements involving
multiple elements is allocated to each element based on vendor-specific objective evidence, which is based on the
price charged when the same element is sold separately. When a digital imaging system is sold, the multiple elements
are software and maintenance and support. Revenue allocated to software is recognized when a contract is executed,
all delivery obligations have been met, the fee is fixed and determinable, and collection is probable. Revenue allocated
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to maintenance and support is recognized as deferred revenue when a contract is executed, all delivery obligations
have been met, the fee is fixed and determinable, and collection is probable. Deferred revenue for maintenance and
support is recognized ratably over the maintenance term, typically for a period of one year, beginning when a digital
imaging system is considered sold or an extended maintenance and support contract is signed.
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Revenue is recorded net of estimated returns. The Company’s management makes estimates of potential future product
returns related to current period revenue. The Company analyzes historical returns, current economic trends and
changes in its customer demand and acceptance of its product when evaluating the adequacy of its allowance for sales
returns and other allowances, such as allowance for bad debts, in any accounting period. As of December 31, 2008
and 2007, the Company’s allowance for sales returns was $52,436 and $133,291, respectively and its allowance for
doubtful accounts was $5,000 and $5,000, respectively.

Advertising Expenses - The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. Advertising expenses for the years
ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 were $110,779 and $49,130, respectively.

Research and Development - Research and development costs are charged to operations as incurred.

Software Development Costs - Software development costs are included in research and development and are
expensed as incurred. After technological feasibility is established, material software development costs are
capitalized until the product is available for general release. The capitalized cost is then amortized on the straight-line
basis over the estimated product life, or on the ration of current revenues to total projected project revenues,
whichever is greater. To date, the period between achieving technological feasibility, which the Company has defined
as the establishment of a working model and the point at which the product is ready for general release has been short
and software development costs qualifying for capitalization have been insignificant. Accordingly, the Company has
not capitalized any software development costs.

Share-Based Employee Compensation - Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the fair value recognition
provisions of FASB Statement No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment, (“SFAS 123(R)”) using the modified prospective
transition method. Under that transition method, compensation cost recognized for the periods ended December 31,
2008 and 2007 includes: (a) compensation cost for all share-based payments granted prior to, but not yet vested as of
January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of FASB
Statement No. 123,  Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (“SFAS 123”), and (b) compensation cost for all
share-based payments granted or modified subsequent to January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated
in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123(R).

Share-based compensation expense for performance-based options granted to non-employees is determined in
accordance with SFAS 123(R) and Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 96-18, Accounting for Equity Instruments
that are Issued to Other than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services (EITF
96-18”), at the fair value of the consideration received or the fair value of the equity instruments issued, whichever is
more reliably measured. The fair value of options granted to non-employees is measured as of the earlier of the
performance commitment date or the date at which performance is complete (“measurement date”). When it is necessary
under generally accepted accounting principles to recognize the cost for the transaction prior to the measurement date,
the fair value of unvested options granted to non-employees is remeasured at the balance sheet date.

Income (Loss) Per Share - Basic net income (loss) per share to common shareholders is calculated based on the
weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period excluding those shares that are
subject to repurchase by the Company. Diluted net income (loss) per share attributable to common shareholders would
give effect to the dilutive effect of potential common stock consisting of stock options, warrants, and preferred stock.
Dilutive securities have been excluded from the diluted net income (loss) per share computations as they have an
antidilutive effect due to the Company’s net loss for the year ended December 31, 2007.

The following outstanding stock options, warrants, common stock subject to repurchase by the Company, and
preferred stock (on an as-converted into common stock basis) were excluded from the computation of diluted net
income (loss) per share attributable to holders of common stock as they had an antidilutive effect:
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2007
Shares issuable upon exercise of warrants 336,934

Comprehensive Income (Loss) - For all periods presented, there were no differences between net income (loss) and
comprehensive income (loss).
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Concentration of Credit Risk - Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to concentration of
credit risk, consist principally of trade receivables and holdings of cash. The Company’s credit risk is managed by
investing its cash in high-quality money market instruments. The receivables credit risk is controlled through credit
approvals, credit limits, monitoring procedures, and establishment of a reserve for doubtful accounts.

Material Customers - GE Healthcare provided 18.1% and 23.6% of the Company’s revenues in the years ended
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Accounts receivable owing from GE Healthcare were 26.1% and 29.5% of
all Company accounts receivable at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Segments - The Company has adopted SFAS No. 131, Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information (“SFAS 131”). SFAS 131 established standards for reporting information about operating segments in
financial reports issued to shareholders. It also established standards for related disclosures about products and
services, geographic areas and major customers. The Company develops and markets both macro imaging and micro
imaging systems. Operating segments are defined as component of the Company’s business for which separate
financial information is available that is evaluated by the Company’s chief operating decision maker (its CEO) in
deciding how to allocate resources and assessing performance. The Company’s only operating segment consist of sales
of both macro and micro imaging systems to customers.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements - In January 2009, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) Emerging Issues
Task Forms (EITF) 99-20-1 “Amendments to the Impairment Guidance of EITF Issue No. 99-20” To achieve more
consistent determination of whether an other-than-temporary impairment has occurred.  The provisions of FSP EITF
99-20-1 will be applied for interim and annual reporting periods ending after December 15, 2008. The Company does
not believe SFP EITF 99-20-1 will have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In June 2008, the FASB issued EITF 07-5 “Determining Whether an Instrument (or Embedded Feature) is Indexed to
an Entity’s Own Stock.”  The provisions of EITF 07-5 became effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2008.  The Company does not believe EITF 07-5 will have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) Financial Accounting Standard (FAS) 157-1,
“Application of FASB Statement No. 157 to FASB Statement No. 13 and Its Related Interpretive Accounting
Pronouncements That Address Leasing Transactions,” and FSP FAS 157-2, “Effective Date of FASB Statement No.
157.” FSP FAS 157-1 removes leasing from the scope of SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” FSP FAS 157-2
delays the effective date of SFAS No. 157 from 2008 to 2009 for all nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities,
except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis, at least
annually.

In September 2006, the FASB finalized SFAS No. 157 which became effective January 1, 2008 except as amended by
FSP FAS 157-1 and FSP FAS 157-2 as described above. This Statement defines fair value, establishes a framework
for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements; however, it does not require any new
fair value measurements. The provisions of SFAS No. 157 were applied prospectively to fair value measurements and
disclosures for financial assets and financial liabilities and nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities recognized
or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on at least an annual basis beginning in the first quarter of 2008.
The adoption of SFAS No. 157 did not have a material effect on the condensed consolidated financial statements for
fair value measurements made during the first quarter of 2008. While the Company does not expect the adoption of
SFAS No. 157 to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements in subsequent reporting periods, the
company continues to monitor any additional implementation guidance that is issued that addresses the fair value
measurements for certain financial assets and nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities not disclosed at fair value
in the consolidated financial statements on at least an annual basis.

Edgar Filing: ALPHA INNOTECH CORP - Form 10-K

54



In May 2008, the FASB released SFAS No. 162, “The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.” SFAS
No. 162 identifies the sources of accounting principles and the framework for selecting the principles used in the
preparation of financial statements of nongovernmental entities that presented in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States of America. SFAS No. 162 will be effective 60 days following the SEC’s
approval of the PCAOB amendments to AU Section 411, The Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. The Company does not believe SFAS No. 162 will have a significant
impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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In June 2008, the FASB issued Staff Position FSP EITF No. 03-6-1, “Determining Whether Instruments Granted in
Share-Based Payment Transactions are Participating Securities” (“FSP EITF 03-6-1”). The FSP provides that unvested
share-based payment awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents (whether paid or
unpaid) are participating securities and shall be included in the computation of earnings per share pursuant to the
two-class method. The FSP is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years. Upon adoption, a company is required to retrospectively adjust its
earnings per share data (including and amounts related to interim periods, summaries of earnings and selected
financial data) to conform to the provisions in the FSP. Early application of the FSP is prohibited. The adoption of
FSP No. EITF 03-6-1 is not anticipated to have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.

2.         Fair Value

The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 157 as amended by FSP FAS 157-1 and FSP FAS 157-2 on
January 1, 2008. Pursuant to the provisions of FSP FAS 157-2, the Company will not apply the provisions of SFAS
No. 157 until January 1, 2009 for the following major categories of nonfinancial assets and liabilities from the
consolidated balance sheet: property and equipment. The Company recorded no change to its opening balance of
accumulated deficit as of January 1, 2008 as it did not have any financial instruments requiring retrospective
application per the provisions of SFAS No. 157.

Fair Value Hierarchy - SFAS No. 157 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based upon whether the inputs to
those valuation techniques reflect assumptions other market participants would use based upon market data obtained
from independent sources (observable inputs) or reflect the company’s own assumptions of market participant
valuation (unobservable inputs). In accordance with SFAS No. 157, these two types of inputs have created the
following fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets that are unadjusted and accessible at the measurement date for identical,
unrestricted assets or liabilities;

Level 2 - Quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in markets that are not active, quoted prices for similar assets
and liabilities in active markets or financial instruments for which significant inputs are observable, either directly or
indirectly;

Level 3 - Prices or valuations that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and
unobservable.

SFAS No. 157 requires the use of observable market data if such data is available without undue cost and effort.

Measurement of Fair Value - The Company measures fair value as an exit price using the procedures described below
for all assets and liabilities measured at fair value. When available, the company uses unadjusted quoted market prices
to measure fair value and classifies such items within Level 1. If quoted market prices are not available, fair value is
based upon internally developed models that use, where possible, current market-based or independently-sourced
market parameters such as interest rates and currency rates. Items valued using internally generated models are
classified according to the lowest level input or value driver that is significant to the valuation. Thus, an item may be
classified in Level 3 even though there may be inputs that are readily observable. If quoted market prices are not
available, the valuation model used generally depends on the specific asset or liability being valued.

Credit risk adjustments are applied to reflect the Company’s own credit risk when valuing all liabilities measured at
fair value. The methodology is consistent with that applied in developing counterparty credit risk adjustments, but
incorporates the Company’s own credit risk as observed in the credit default swap market.
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The following table presents the Company’s assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis at
December 31, 2008:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 648,757 $ — $ —$ 648,757
Restricted cash 50,000 — —   50,000
Total assets $ 698,757 $ — $ —$ 698,757
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3.         Balance Sheet Components

Accounts receivable, net consisted of the following at December 31, 2008 and 2007:

2008 2007
Accounts receivable $ 3,090,416 $ 2,367,989
Less allowance for sales returns (52,436) (133,291)
Less allowance for doubtful accounts      (5,000)      (5,000)
Accounts receivable, net $ 3,032,980 $ 2,229,698

Inventory, net consisted of the following at December 31, 2008 and 2007:

2008 2007
Raw materials $ 1,496,555 $ 896,935
Inventory in transit 14,623 155,681
Less allowance for excess and obsolete inventory (46,612)       (46,531)
Inventory, net $ 1,464,566 $ 1,006,085

Property and equipment, net consisted of the following at December 31, 2008 and 2007:

2008 2007
Machinery and equipment $ 564,191 $ 435,617
Furniture and fixtures 211,317             208,201
Leasehold improvements 1,507,500          1,507,500
Loaner and demonstration units 541,485            1,160,053
Computers 357,374             358,443
Software 105,890              103,796
Total property and equipment 3,287,757          3,773,610
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (2,497,881)        (2,859,227)
Property and equipment, net $ 789,876 $ 914,383

In 2002, the Company entered into a capital lease agreement for production equipment. As of December 31, 2008,
property and equipment includes $4,756 of equipment under capital lease and accumulated amortization of assets
under capital lease was $4,756.

Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 was $534,379 and $601,181,
respectively.

Loan costs, net consisted of the following at December 31, 2008 and 2007:

2008 2007
Loan costs  $ 193,260  $ —
Less accumulated amortization (73,828) —
Loan costs, net  $ 119,432  $ —

Amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 was $73,828 and $0, respectively, and is
included in general and administrative expenses.
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Accrued liabilities consisted of the following at December 31, 2008 and 2007:

2008 2007
Payroll and related costs  $ 642,629  $ 455,641
Warranty 104,767 153,251
Audit and tax service fees 88,250 62,250
Finder’s fee 175,000 175,000
Consultant and Board member fees 4,080 1,792
Founder's bonus — 398,162
Other 95,284 83,764
Total accrued liabilities  $ 1,110,010  $ 1,329,860

4.        Debt

Debt consisted of the following at December 31, 2008 and 2007:

2008 2007
Bridge Bank Line of Credit $ 2,029,000 $ —
Agility Capital LLC and Montage Capital LLC, net of debt discount 906,565 —
ETP Venture Capital II LLC Convertible Note, net of debt discount 152,275 307,938
Alexandria Finance, LLC Term Loan — 200,000
BFI Business Finance Line of Credit — 1,206,968
Total debt 3,087,840 1,714,906
Less current portion (2,935,565) (1,406,968)
Debt, net of current portion $ 152,275 $ 307,938

Loans from Bridge Bank - On September 3, 2008, the Company entered into a Business Financing Agreement (the
“Business Financing Agreement”) and a Borrower Agreement (the “Borrower Agreement”, and together with the Business
Financing Agreement, the “Bridge Bank Loan Agreements”) with Bridge Bank, National Association (“Bridge Bank”).
The Company used the proceeds from the loan for general corporate purposes and to retire certain of its other
outstanding debt obligations including the BFI Business Finance line of credit. Under the Bridge Bank Loan
Agreements, the Company may receive a maximum of $2,500,000 ($1,250,000 under the domestic accounts
receivable facility and $1,250,000 under the foreign accounts receivable facility, subject to certain limitations).  The
loan has a term of twelve months, starting September 3, 2008.  The loan will have a finance charge equal to the prime
rate listed in the Wall Street Journal plus 1.25% (the “Prime Rate”) annualized on the average daily financed amount
outstanding.  The Prime Rate floats and has a floor of 4.75%. The Company paid Bridge Bank $12,600 and BroadOak
$50,000 for a total of $62,600 in loan fees. Interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 was
$34,197 and $0, respectively. The loan is secured by a first position lien against all corporate assets. At December 31,
2008, the amount of unused line of credit was $154,653.

Loan from Agility Capital LLC and Montage Capital LLC - On May 9, 2008,  the Company entered into a loan
agreement (“Loan Agreement”)  with Montage Capital, LLC (“Montage”) and Agility Capital, LLC (“Agility”, and together
with Montage, “Montage/Agility”). Under the Loan Agreement, the Company requested one advance of $1,500,000
from Montage/Agility which bears interest at a rate of 13% per year and is due on October 31, 2009 (the “Maturity
Date”). The Company paid Montage/Agility $37,500 in loan fees. As of December 31, 2008, a total of $415,000 of the
principal amount of the note had been repaid. Interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 was
$132,096 and $0, respectively, excluding debt discount. The loan is secured by a second position lien against all
corporate assets.
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ETP/FBR Venture Capital II, LLC Convertible Note - On July 21, 2006, pursuant to a Securities Purchase Agreement
(the “Purchase Agreement”) between the Company and ETP/FBR Venture Capital II, LLC (the “Purchaser”), the
Company completed a private placement offering of a subordinated Senior Convertible Note in the principal amount
of $375,000 (the “Note”) and a warrant to purchase 125,000 shares of the Company’s common stock (the “Warrant”) (See
Note 7, Common Stock). The Note bears interest at a rate of 3% per year and is due on July 20, 2011. Interest expense
accrued on the note for the year ended December 31, 2008 was $8,214. During the occurrence of an "Event of
Default" under the Note, the Note will bear interest at a rate of 10% per year. The Note is convertible into shares of
common stock of the Company at an initial conversion price of $1.60 per share of common stock. The Warrant is
exercisable at the price of $1.20 per share. William Snider, a director of the Company, is a general partner of the
Purchaser. William Snider was a general partner of ETP/FBR Venture Capital LLC, which currently owns
approximately 14.2% of common stock of the Company. Interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2008 and
2007 was $9,011 and $30,596, respectively, excluding debt discount. The Note is unsecured.

Alexandria Finance, LLC Term Loan - In April 2005, the Company executed a term loan in the amount of $1,500,000
payable to Alexandria Finance, LLC. The loan was repaid in full and cancelled effective May 2008. Interest expense
for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 was $2,579 and $59,212, respectively.

 BFI Business Finance Line of Credit - In March 2004, the Company established a line of credit with BFI Business
Finance. The line of credit was repaid in full and cancelled effective September 2008. Interest expense for the years
ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 was $140,995 and $198,932, respectively.

 Maturities are as follows:

Year ending December 31:
2011 $152,275
ETP/FBR Venture Capital II, LLC Convertible Note $152,275

5. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company rents its office facilities under an operating lease, which expires on December 2011. Under the terms of
the lease, the Company is responsible for taxes, insurance and maintenance expenses. Rent expense for the years
ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 was $587,280 and $575,135, respectively.

At December 31, 2008, total future minimum facility lease payments are as follows:

Year ending December 31:
2009 $595,536
2010 598,055
2011 550,572
Total minimum lease obligation $1,744,163

Under the terms of the 2001 facility lease agreement, the Company is obligated to provide the lessor with a security
deposit of $66,500, which is included in other assets.

6. Income Taxes

No provision or benefit for income taxes has been recognized for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007. For
2008, the Company reduced the provision for income taxes by $253,814 as a result of prior year net operating loss
carryforwards being realized. For 2007, the Company incurred a net operating loss for tax purposes and had no loss
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    The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities at December 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

2008 2007
Net operating loss carryforwards $3,542,720 $3,677,511
Research and development credits 868,427 759,099
Reserves and accruals 1,208,156 1,281,102
Total 5,619,303 5,717,712
Less valuation allowance (5,619,303) (5,717,712)
Deferred taxes $— $—

The net change in the valuation allowance for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 was $(98,409) and
$234,931, respectively. Management believes that sufficient uncertainty exists regarding the future realization of
deferred tax assets, and, accordingly a full valuation allowance is required.

The difference between the expected provision for income taxes, based on the U.S. federal statutory tax rate of 34%,
to the Company’s actual income tax provision, effective tax rate of 0%, relates to a full valuation allowance.

At December 31, 2008, the Company had federal and state net operating loss carryforwards of approximately
$9,167,000 and $7,301,000 respectively. The federal and state net operating loss carryforwards will expire in various
periods through 2028.

At December 31, 2008, the Company had federal and state research and development tax credits of approximately
$868,000. The federal research and development tax credits will expire in various periods through 2028 and the
California state research and development tax credits can be carried forward indefinitely.

Utilization of net operating loss carryforwards may be subject to substantial limitation due to the ownership change
limitations provided by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and similar state provisions. The annual limitation may
result in the expiration of net operating losses and tax credits before utilization.

Tax years that remain open for examination include 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008.

7. Common Stock

Warrants for Common Stock - During 2006, the Company issued warrants to ETP/FBR Venture Capital II LLC to
purchase an aggregate of 125,000 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $1.20 per share as additional
consideration for convertible notes payable in the amount of $375,000. The Company determined the allocated fair
value of the warrants was $94,353 at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes pricing model and the following
assumptions: estimated volatility of 87%, a contractual life of five years, a zero dividend rate, 4.99% risk free interest
rate and the fair value of the common stock of $1.15 per share. The warrants were recorded as a discount to the
convertible promissory notes in the amount of $94,353. The Company amortized $44,337 and $18,871 to interest
expense for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

During May 2008, the Company issued warrants to Agility Capital LLC and Montage Capital LLC to purchase an
aggregate of 281,250 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $0.80 per share as additional consideration for
loans made pursuant to the Agility/Montage Loan Agreement. The Company determined the allocated fair value of the
warrants was $215,800 at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes pricing model and the following assumptions:
estimated volatility of 157%, a contractual life of six and one-half years, a zero dividend rate, 3.33% risk free interest

Edgar Filing: ALPHA INNOTECH CORP - Form 10-K

64



rate, and the fair value of the common stock of $0.80.  In December 2008, the Company issued additional warrants to
Agility and Montage in the aggregate amount of 101,719 shares with an exercise price of $0.80 per share. The
Company determined the allocated fair value of the warrants was $80,549 at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
pricing model and the following assumptions: estimated volatility of 209%, a contractual life of six years, a zero
dividend rate, 1.55% risk free interest rate, and the fair value of the common stock of $0.80.  This amount was
recorded as a loan discount and is being amortized into interest expense over the life of the loan and amounted to
$117,914 for the year ended December 31, 2008.
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In connection with the placement of the loan facility with Agility/Montage, the Company issued warrants to
BroadOak Partners LLC to purchase 56,250 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $0.80 per share. The
Company determined the allocated fair value of the warrants was $43,160 at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
pricing model and the following assumptions: estimated volatility of 157%, a contractual life of six and one-half
years, a zero dividend rate and 3.33% risk free interest rate.  This amount of $43,160 was recorded as loan fees along
with $50,000 that the Company paid in cash to BroadOak for a total of $93,160 in loan fees.  William Snider, a
director of the Company, is a managing partner of BroadOak.

The following table summarizes information concerning outstanding and exercisable common stock warrants as of
December 31, 2008:

Common Stock Warrants
Outstanding at December 31, 2008

Common Stock Warrants
Exercisable at December 31,

2008

Exercise
Price

Number
Outstanding

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual

Life
In Years

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Number
Exercisable

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

$    0.0875  364,169  3.25 $ 0.0875  364,169 $ 0.0875
$    0.8000 373,769 5.83 0.8000 373,769 $ 0.8000
$    1.2000 125,000 7.55 $ 1.2000 125,000 $ 1.2000
$    1.7500 102,861 3.27 $ 1.7500 102,861 $ 1.7500
$    8.5900 22,500 1.34 $ 8.5900 22,500 $ 8.5900
$  14.6900 5,000 1.17 $ 14.690 5,000 $ 14.690

993,299 993,299

The above common stock warrants remained exercisable at December 31, 2007 and will expire at various dates
between March 2009 and July 2016. As of December 31, 2008, the Company had 993,299 warrants outstanding and
exercisable to purchase common stock with a weighted exercise price of $0.93 per share. The weighted average
remaining life of these warrants at December 31, 2008 was 4.71 years.

Stock Option Plans - At December 31, 2008, the Company had five stock option plans (the “Plans”) for the benefit of
employees, officers, directors, and consultants of the Company.

As of December 31, 2008, a total of 152,366 shares of Alpha Innotech Corp.’s common stock were reserved for
issuance for options already granted under two plans. No additional options will be granted from these two plans.
Options granted under the two plans are generally exercisable for a period of ten years from the date of grant at an
exercise price that is not less than the closing price of the common stock on the date of grant. Options granted under
the Plans generally vest over a one- to five-year period from the date of the grant.

As of December 31, 2008, a total of 2,178,236 shares of Alpha Innotech Corporation’s common stock were reserved
for issuance for options already granted under three plans. No additional options will be granted from two of the three
plans. Pursuant to the terms of the Alpha Innotech Corp. 2006 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2006 Plan”), we may award
common stock or issue options to purchase common stock to employees, directors and consultants. Options granted
under the 2006 Plan may be incentive stock options or non-qualified stock options. Incentive stock options (“ISO”) may
be granted only to our employees, officers and directors. Non-qualified stock options (“NSO”) may be granted to
employees and consultants. Options are to be granted at an exercise price not less than fair market value for an ISO or
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85% of fair value for an NSO. For individual holding more than 10% of the voting rights of all classes stock, the
exercise price of an option will not be less than 110% of fair market value. Options granted under the three plans
generally vest over a one- to five-year period from the date of the grant.
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The combined activity for 2008 and 2007 under the above plans was as follows:

Outstanding Options
Shares

Available
For
Grant

Number of
Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

  Aggregate
Price

Balance at January 1, 2007 1,052,339 880,821 $ 2.30 $ 2,028,639
Authorized under the evergreen
provisions of the 2006 Plan 494,570 — $ — —
Restricted shares issued (530,000) — $ — —
Granted (700,800) 700,800 $ 0.99 696,086
Cancelled 98,586 (98,586) $ 1.03 (101,994)
Expired 86,693 (149,321) $ 2.60 (387,894)
Balance at December 31, 2007 501,388 1,333,714 $ 1.68 2,234,837
Authorized under the evergreen
provisions of the 2006 Plan 500,000 — — —
Granted (491,000) 491,000 $ 0.93 455,200
Cancelled 10,125 (10,125) $ 0.86 (8,750)
Expired 2,504 (7,004) $ 7.80 (54,616)
Balance at December 31, 2008 523,017 1,807,585 $ 1.45 $ 2,626,671

The following information summarizes stock options outstanding at December 31, 2008:

Options
Outstanding at

December 31, 2008

Options
Exercisable at

December 31, 2008

Exercise Price
Number

Outstanding

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual

Life
In Years

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Number
Exercisable

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

$      0.80-0.90 512,334 8.5 $ 0.88 247,937 $ 0.87
$      0.95-0.98  410,000 9.2 $ 0.99  62,500 $ 0.99
$      1.12-1.35 353,060 8.2 $ 1.21 191,780 $ 1.24
$      1.40-1.53 246,288 6.9 $ 1.52 208,788 $ 1.52
$    1.66-16.87 285,903 3.6 $ 3.34  273,041 $ 3.48

1,807,585 984,046
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    The following table presents share-based compensation expense included in the Consolidated Statements of
Operation related to employee and non-employee stock options and restricted shares as follows:

Twelve Months Ended
December 31,

2008 2007
Cost of goods sold  $ 23,597  $ 2,441
Sales and marketing 160,016 122,363
Research and development 71,763 44,513
General and administrative 298,104 217,328
Total share-based compensation  $ 553,480  $ 386,645

As of December 31, 2008, $699,279 of total unrecognized share-based compensation expense related to non-vested
awards is expected to be recognized over the respective vesting terms of each award through August 2012. The
weighted average term of the unrecognized stock-based compensation is 2.73 years. As of December 31, 2008,
$185,495 of total unrecognized share-based compensation expense related to non-vested restricted shares is expected
to be recognized over the remaining life of the grant through February 14, 2010.

In the twelve months ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, no share-based compensation expense was capitalized and
there were no recognized tax benefits associated with the share-based compensation charge. The share-based
compensation charge did not significantly impact basic and diluted net loss per share in the twelve months ended
December 31, 2008 and 2007.

The following table summarizes the Company’s non-vested stock option activity for the year ended December 31,
2008:

Number of
Shares

Weighted
Average
Grant Date
Fair Value

Non-vested stock outstanding at January 1, 2008 790,306  $ 1.10
Granted 491,000  $ 0.93
Vested (447,642)  $ 1.06
Forfeited (10,125)  $ 0.86
Non-vested stock outstanding at December 31, 2008 823,539  $ 1.03

Total fair value of non-vested shares is $847,149 and $873,003 for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively.

The Company estimates the fair value of stock options using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. Key input
assumptions used to estimate the fair value of stock options include the exercise price of the award, expected option
term, expected volatility of the stock over the option’s expected term, risk-free interest rate over the option’s expected
term, and the expected annual dividend yield. The Company believes that the valuation technique and approach
utilized to develop the underlying assumptions are appropriate in calculation the fair values of the stock options
granted in the twelve months ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.

For these options, the Company calculated the fair value of each option on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
Option pricing model as prescribed in SFAS No. 123 using the following assumptions:
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2008 2007

Risk-free interest
3.83%-
4.16%

4.37%
–5.09%

Expected life 6.25 Years 10 Years

Expected volatility 111%-168%
157% -

199%
Expected dividend — —
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    Activity under the Company’s stock plans for the year ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 is as follows:

Shares

Weighted
-Average
Exercise
Price per
Share

Weighted-Average
Remaining
Contractual

Terms in Years

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value

Outstanding at January 1, 2007 880,821  $ 2.30
Grants 700,800  $ 0.99
Forfeitures (98,586)  $ 1.03
Expirations 149,321)  $ 2.60
Outstanding at December 31, 2007 1,333,714  $ 1.68
Grants 491,000  $ 0.93
Forfeitures (10,125)  $ 0.86
Expirations (7,004)  $ 7.80
Outstanding at December 31, 2008 1,807,585  $ 1.45 7.6  $ —
Exercisable at December 31, 2008 984,046  $ 1.79 6.6  $ —
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2008 1,807,585  $ 1.45 7.6  $ —

The aggregate intrinsic value is the total pretax intrinsic value (i.e., the difference between the Company’s closing
stock price on the last trading day of its fourth quarter of 2008 and the exercise price, multiplied by the number of
in-the-money options) that would have been received by the option holders had all option holders exercised their
options as of that date. The Company’s closing stock price on December 31, 2008 was $0.70.  

8. Employee Benefits Plan 

The Company offers the Alpha Innotech Corporation 401(k) Retirement Plan (“401(k) Plan”), a qualified voluntary
contributory saving plan, available to substantially all the Company’s employees. Eligible employees may contribute
up to 15% of their pretax annual compensation, up to the amount allowed pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code. In
2008 and 2007, the Company did not match its employee contribution. The Company’s cost of the 401(k) Plan for the
years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 was $0 and $0, respectively.

9. Business Segment Information 

Operating segments are defined as component of the Company’s business for which separate financial information is
available that is evaluated by the Company’s chief operating decision maker (its CEO) in deciding how to allocate
resources and assessing performance. The Company’s only operating segment consist of sales of both Gel Imaging and
Microimaging systems to customers.

Revenue by geographic areas for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

2008 2007
North America  $ 9,850,013  $ 8,128,413
Asia and Pacific Rim 3,602,649 2,696,736
Europe 3,986,038 4,450,748
Other 169,794 45,832
Total revenue  $ 17,608,494  $ 15,321,729

Long-lived assets by geographic areas as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:
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2008 2007
United States  $ 999,540  $ 1,004,615
International — —
Total long-lived assets  $ 999,540  $ 1,004,615
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10. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) 

The following is quarterly data for the periods presented on the consolidated statement of operations.

For the Year Ended December 31, 2008
First

Quarter
Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

Revenue $3,668,143 $4,243,667 $4,870,150 $4,826,534
Cost of goods sold 1,556,793 1,857,435 2,369,521 2,207,994
Gross profit 2,111,350 2,386,232 2,500,629 2,618,540
Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing 1,184,721 1,312,771 1,305,807 1,384,917
Research and development
expenses

375,275 272,802 348,602 347,073

General and administrative
expenses

566,842 603,583 677,529 746,580

Total operating expenses 2,126,838 2,189,156 2,331,938 2,478,570
Income (loss) from operations (15,488) 197,076 168,691 139,970
Other income (expense):
Interest expense (83,290) (174,796) (137,870) (115,660)
Sale of patent 100,000 — — —
Other income (expense), net (3,279) 919 (8,962) 265
Total other income (expense) 13,431 (173,877) (146,832) (115,395)
Net income (loss) $(2,057 ) $23,199 $21,859 $24,575
Net income (loss) per share:
Basic $(0.00 ) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Diluted $(0.00 ) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Weighted average shares
outstanding:
Basic 10,536,390 10,873,776 10,922,136 10,922,136
Diluted 10,536,390 11,281,197 11,237,224 11,233,185

For the Year Ended December 31, 2007
First

Quarter
Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

Revenue $3,546,936 $3,611,820 $3,680,160 $4,482,813
Cost of goods sold 1,575,317 1,619,770 1,690,139 1,999,806
Gross profit 1,971,619 1,992,050 1,990,021 2,483,007
Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing 1,054,569 1,162,826 1,299,011 1,357,460
Research and development expenses 303,494 343,996 298,820 376,448
General and administrative expenses 531,998 753,297 604,475 705,166
Total operating expenses 1,890,061 2,260,119 2,202,306 2,439,074
Income (loss) from operations 81,558 (268,069) (212,285) 43,933
Other income (expense):
Interest expense (82,452) (66,693) (71,811) (78,593)
Other income (expense), net 229 (2,635) (5,459) 540
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Total other income (expense) (82,223) (69,328) (77,270) (78,053) 
Net loss $(665 ) $(337,397 ) $(289,555 ) $(34,120 )
Net loss per share - basic and diluted $(0.00 ) $(0.03 ) $(0.03 ) $(0.00 )
Weighted average shares outstanding -
basic and diluted 9,891,393 10,421,393 10,449,147 10,462,576
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 ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.

ITEM 9A (T).  CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report, management performed, with the participation of our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act. Our disclosure controls and procedures
are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the report we file or submit under the Exchange Act
is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s forms, and that such
information is accumulated and communicated to our management including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures.  Based on the evaluation and the
identification of the material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting described below, our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of December 31, 2008, the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures were not effective.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act.  Internal control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with GAAP.  Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.   Also, projection of any evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods is subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management has conducted, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, an
assessment, including testing of the effectiveness, of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2008.  Management’s assessment of internal control over financial reporting was conducted using the criteria in
Internal Control over Financial Reporting – Guidance for Smaller Public Companies issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”).

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of a company’s annual or interim financial statements
will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.   In connection with management’s assessment of our internal
control over financial reporting as required under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, we identified the
following material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008.

1.Our control environment did not sufficiently promote effective internal control over financial reporting throughout
our organizational structure and this material weakness was a contributing factor to other material weaknesses.

2.The Board of Directors has not established adequate financial reporting monitoring activities to  mitigate the risk of
management override, specifically:
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•Board of Directors delegation of authority has not been formally documented.

•Insufficient oversight of accounting principle implementation.

3.Due to an insufficient number of personnel with an appropriate level of experience and knowledge of U.S. GAAP
and SEC reporting requirements that are commensurate with our financial reporting requirements, there have been
significant audit adjustments to the quarterly and annual financial statements as well as insufficient compliance with
U.S GAAP and SEC reporting requirements.

    Because of the material weaknesses noted above, management has concluded that we did not maintain effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, based on Internal Control over Financial Reporting –
Guidance for Smaller Public Companies issued by COSO.

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the company’s registered public accounting firm regarding
internal control over financial reporting. Management’s report was not subject to attestation by the company’s
registered public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission that permit
the company to provide only management’s report in this annual report.
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Remediation of Material Weaknesses in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is in the process of addressing its material weaknesses in an effort to improve its system of internal
control over financial reporting through the following actions:

Our CEO/CFO will prepare a formal documentation of delegation policy that will be reviewed and approved by the
Board and distributed to all employees.

Future Audit Committee meetings will specifically include reviews over the implementation of accounting principles.

As a small company, we do not have the resources to have dedicated staff with deep expertise in all facets of SEC
disclosure and GAAP compliance.  As is the case with many small companies, we will continue to work with our
external auditors and attorneys as it relates to financial statement and disclosure review.

The foregoing initiatives will enable us to improve our internal controls over financial reporting.  Management is
committed to continuing efforts aimed at improving the design adequacy and operational effectiveness of its system of
internal controls.  The remediation efforts noted above will be subject to tour internal control assessment, testing and
evaluation process.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In Item 8A(T) of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007,
management reported material weaknesses in its internal control over financial reporting.

Specifically,

1.The Board of Directors has not established adequate financial reporting monitoring activities to  mitigate the risk of
management override, specifically:

•The whistleblower program has not been adequately communicated to employees.

•Insufficient oversight of external audit specifically related to executive sessions.

2.Due to an insufficient number of personnel with an appropriate level of experience and knowledge of U.S GAAP
and SEC reporting requirements that are commensurate with the Company’s financial reporting requirements there
has been insufficient monitoring of new accounting principles.

3.We have not maintained sufficient competent evidence to support the effective operation of our internal controls
over financial reporting, specifically related to management’s review of journal entries; account analyses,
reconciliations, and other records underlying recorded amounts; customer contracts; and critical spreadsheet
controls.

4.We have not adequately divided, or compensated for, incompatible functions among personnel to reduce the risk
that a potential material misstatement of the financial statements would occur without being prevented or
detected.  Specifically, journal entries or account analyses prepared by the Controller are not subject to review, and
access to our accounting modules has not been adequately restricted. 

Management’s remediation plan to address the material weaknesses described above was initiated in 2008 and included
the following steps taken to strengthen internal control over financial reporting:
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1.We posted the whistleblower policy on our website and our audit committee now engages in executive sessions
with our external auditors at least monthly.

2.We appointed a new Chief Financial Officer who is responsible for completing quarterly and annual U.S. GAAP
and SEC checklists and monitoring of new accounting principles.

3.We increased management’s review of key financial documents and records and have formalized our review
procedures and now maintain formal documentation to evidence the effective operation of our internal controls over
financial reporting, specifically related to management’s review of journal entries; account analyses, reconciliations,
and other records underlying recorded amounts, customer contracts, and critical spreadsheet controls.

4.We made our information technology group the primary system administrator for our accounting system and
restricted access to specific modules of the accounting system on a need-to-use and/or read-only basis.  We also
formalized the process of journal entry and account analysis review including redistribution of roles and
responsibilities; the Chief Financial Officer now reviews all journal entries and account analyses.

Other Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Other than the control improvements discussed above, there were no changes in our internal control over financial
reporting during the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2008 that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART III

[Certain information required by Part III is omitted from this report because the Company will file a definitive proxy
statement within 120 days after the end of its fiscal year pursuant to Regulation 14A (the “Proxy Statement”) for its
2009 annual meeting of stockholders, and the information included in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by
reference.]

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The following table sets forth information, as of March 31, 2009, with respect to some of our executive officers who
are not directors:

NAME AGE POSITION
Michael P. Henighan 56 Chief Financial Officer
Jeff Whitmore 39 Vice President, Global Sales
Siavash Ghazvini 39 Vice President, Marketing and Business Development

MICHAEL HENIGHAN has been our Chief Financial Officer since August 2008. Prior to joining Alpha Innotech as
Corporate Controller in May of 2008, Mr. Henighan was Vice President and Corporate Controller at HemoSense, Inc.,
a publicly traded medical device company, from May 2005 to May 2008 and Corporate Controller at Cholestech

Edgar Filing: ALPHA INNOTECH CORP - Form 10-K

79



Corp., a publicly traded medical device company, from July 1997 to May 2005. Prior to 1997,  he also held senior
management positions with Solectron, Applied Biosystems, and Motorola. Mr. Henighan earned his BS in Accounting
from California State University, Los Angeles.

JEFF WHITMORE has been our Vice President of Global Sales since 2006. Prior to joining us, Mr. Whitmore
directed the European Life Sciences sales team for Molecular Devices while based in the United Kingdom from 2004
until 2006, and held sales positions with Molecular Devices in Southern California from 2002 until 2004, Bio-Rad
Laboratories, Inc. from 2000 until 2002, Schrieber Foods Incorporated from 1998 until 200) and Cargill Incorporated
from 1995 until 1998. Mr. Whitmore began his career as a microbiologist for Cargill in 1994. Mr. Whitmore holds a
B.S. degree in microbiology from the University of Wisconsin.
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SIAVASH GHAZVINI has been our Vice President of Marketing and Business Development since 2003. From 2002
to 2003, Mr. Ghazvini worked with Xagros Technologies, a seed stage, venture financed, molecular diagnostic
biotechnology company engaged in research and development to commercialize consumable reagents, disposable test
cassettes and instrumentation for early detection and identification of infectious agents. From 2000 to 2002 he was
Vice-President, Strategic Corporate and Business Development for Combimatrix Corporation, a publicly traded
biotechnology company engaged in development of rapidly customizable semiconductor based, software addressable
biochips. From 1995 to 2000, Mr. Ghazvini founded and led Nucleotech Corporation, which developed,
manufactured, and marketed an integrated line of advanced imaging systems and bioinformatics software for biology
and medicine. Mr. Ghazvini holds a BS in Genetics from the University of California at Davis and attended graduate
school in molecular biology at San Francisco State University.

Code of Ethics

    We previously adopted a Code of Ethical Conduct applicable to all directors, officers and employees, a copy of
which is made available on our website at www.alphainnotech.com under the caption Investors and filed with the SEC
as Exhibit 14.1to our Form 10-KSB/A filed April 28, 2004. We intend to disclose any amendments to or waiver from
our Code of Ethical Conduct that are required to be publicly disclosed pursuant to rules of the SEC by filing such
amendments or waiver with the SEC.

    We have incorporated by reference the information set forth under the captions “Election of Directors”, “Corporate
Governance” and “Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act” of the Company’s Proxy Statement
(the “Proxy Statement”) for the 2009 annual meeting of stockholders.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

    We have incorporated by reference the information set forth under the captions “Executive Compensation” and
“Director Compensation” of the Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

    We have incorporated by reference the information set forth under the captions “Common Stock Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” and “Equity Compensation Plan Information” of the Proxy Statement.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

    We have incorporated by reference the information set forth under the captions “Related Party Transactions” and
“Corporate Governance” of the Proxy Statement.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

    We have incorporated by reference the information set forth under the captions “Report of the Audit Committee”,
“Ratification of Independent Registered Public Accountants” and “Auditors Fees & Services” of the Proxy Statement.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
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Number Description
2.11 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of December 14, 2004

2.22 Amendment No. 1 to Agreement and Plan of Merger dated April 6, 2005

2.33 Amendment No. 2 to Agreement and Plan of Merger dated July 6, 2005

2.44 Amendment No. 3 to Agreement and Plan of Merger dated August 25, 2005

3.15 Certificate of Incorporation

3.1.15 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation

3.26 Bylaws

4.17 1993 Stock Incentive Plan*

4.28 2000 Stock Incentive Plan*

4.35 Amended and Restated 1999 Stock Option Plan of Alpha Innotech Corporation*

4.45 2001 Milestone Stock Option Plan of Alpha Innotech Corporation*

4.59 2006 Equity Incentive Plan*

4.65 Secured Promissory Note Issued to Alexandria Dated April 8, 2005

4.75 Loan and Security Agreement with BFI dated March 9, 2004

4.810 Form of Convertible Note Issued to ETP/FBR Venture Capital II, LLC

4.910 Form of Warrant Issued to ETP/FBR Venture Capital II, LLC

4.109 Form of 2006 Equity Incentive Plan Stock Option Agreement

4.1111 Form of 2006 Equity Incentive Plan Stock Award Agreement

10.110 Form of Securities Purchase Agreement with ETP/FBR Venture Capital II, LLC

1 Incorporated by reference to our Form 8-K filed December 17, 2004
2 Incorporated by reference to our Form 8-K filed April 12, 2005.
3 Incorporated by reference to our Form 8-K filed July 11, 2005.
4 Incorporated by reference to our Form 8-K filed August 26, 2005.
5 Incorporated by reference to our Form 8-K filed October 7, 2005.
6 Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 33-20584).
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7Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended December 31,
1994.
8 Incorporated by reference to Registrant's Definitive Proxy Statement filed on June 23, 2000 (File No. 001-14257).
9 Incorporated by reference to our Form S-8 filed October 19, 2006.
10Incorporated by reference to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for the quarter ending June 30, 2006 filed
August 14, 2006.

11 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.11 to our Form 10-KSB filed March 31, 2008.
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10.912 First Modification to Loan and Security Agreement with BFI Business Finance dated as of October 26,
2007

10.1013 Secured Promissory Note to BFI Business Finance dated January 15, 2008

10.1113 Second Modification to Loan and Security Agreement with BFI Business Finance dated as of February
29, 2008

10.1213 Secured Promissory Note to BFI Business Finance dated as of February 29, 2008

10.1314 Employment Contract with Ronald H. Bissinger dated July 17, 2007*

10.1413 Common Stock Purchase Agreement with William Snider dated as of March 13, 2008

10.1515 Loan Agreement by and between Montage Capital LLC and Agility Capital LLC dated as of May 9,
2008

10.1615 Form of Warrant issued to Montage Capital LLC and Agility Capital LLC

10.1716 Employee offer letter to Michael P. Henighan*

10.1817 Business Financing Agreement with Bridge Bank, National Association dated as of September 3, 2009

10.1917 Borrower Agreement dated as of September 3, 2009

11.118 Statement regarding computation of per share earnings

14.119 Code of Ethical Conduct

21.1 Subsidiaries of the small business issuer

23.1 Letter of Consent From Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, Rowbotham & Company

24.120 Power of attorney

31.1 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification (CEO)

31.2 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification (CFO)

32.1 Section 1350 Certification (CEO)

32.2 Section 1350 Certification (CFO)

* Management contract or compensatory plan
12 Incorporated by reference to our Form 10-QSB filed November 14, 2007.
13 Incorporated by reference to our Form 10-KSB filed March 31, 2008
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14 Incorporated by reference to our Form 8-K filed July 20, 2007
15 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to our Form 8-K filed May 13, 2008
16 Incorporated by reference to our Form 8-K filed August 22, 2008
17 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to our Form 8-K filed September 5, 2009
18Incorporated by reference to the discussion of “Income (Loss) Per Share” located in Note 1 of the consolidated
financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 of this report.

19 Copy available on our website at www.alphainnotech.com.
20 Incorporated by reference to Power of Attorney located on page S-2 of this report. 
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Alpha Innotech Corp.
Date: March 26, 2009 /s/ Ronald Bissinger

Ronald Bissinger
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: March 26, 2009 /s/ Michael P. Henighan
Michael P. Henighan
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

S-1
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and
appoints Ronald H. Bissinger and Michael P. Henighan, jointly and severally, his or her attorneys-in-fact, each with
the power of substitution, for him or her in any and all capacities, to sign any amendments to this Report on Form
10-K, and to file the same, with exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming all that each of said attorneys-in-fact, or his or her substitute
or substitutes may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Ronald H. Bissinger Chief Executive Officer March 26,

2009
Ronald H. Bissinger (Principal Executive Officer)

 /s/ Michael P. Henighan     Chief Financial Officer March 26,
2009

Michael P. Henighan     (Principal Financial and Accounting
Officer)

/s/ William Snider Chairman March 26,
2009

William Snider

/s/ Haseeb Chaudhry Vice Chairman March 26,
2009

Haseeb Chaudhry

/s/ Michael D. Bick, Ph. D. Director March 26,
2009

Michael D. Bick, Ph. D.

/s/ James H. Chamberlain Director March 26,
2009

James H. Chamberlain

/s/ Gus Davis Director March 26,
2009

Gus Davis

/s/ Joseph Keegan, Ph. D. Director March 26,
2009

Joseph Keegan, Ph. D.
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Number Description
2.11 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of December 14, 2004

2.22 Amendment No. 1 to Agreement and Plan of Merger dated April 6, 2005

2.33 Amendment No. 2 to Agreement and Plan of Merger dated July 6, 2005

2.44 Amendment No. 3 to Agreement and Plan of Merger dated August 25, 2005

3.15 Certificate of Incorporation

3.1.15 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation

3.26 Bylaws

4.17 1993 Stock Incentive Plan*

4.28 2000 Stock Incentive Plan*

4.35 Amended and Restated 1999 Stock Option Plan of Alpha Innotech Corporation*

4.45 2001 Milestone Stock Option Plan of Alpha Innotech Corporation*

4.59 2006 Equity Incentive Plan*

4.65 Secured Promissory Note Issued to Alexandria Dated April 8, 2005

4.75 Loan and Security Agreement with BFI dated March 9, 2004

4.810 Form of Convertible Note Issued to ETP/FBR Venture Capital II, LLC

4.910 Form of Warrant Issued to ETP/FBR Venture Capital II, LLC

4.109 Form of 2006 Equity Incentive Plan Stock Option Agreement

4.1111 Form of 2006 Equity Incentive Plan Stock Award Agreement

10.110 Form of Securities Purchase Agreement with ETP/FBR Venture Capital II, LLC

1 Incorporated by reference to our Form 8-K filed December 17, 2004
2 Incorporated by reference to our Form 8-K filed April 12, 2005.
3 Incorporated by reference to our Form 8-K filed July 11, 2005.
4 Incorporated by reference to our Form 8-K filed August 26, 2005.
5 Incorporated by reference to our Form 8-K filed October 7, 2005.
6 Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 33-20584).
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7Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended December 31,
1994.
8 Incorporated by reference to Registrant's Definitive Proxy Statement filed on June 23, 2000 (File No. 001-14257).
9 Incorporated by reference to our Form S-8 filed October 19, 2006.
10Incorporated by reference to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for the quarter ending June 30, 2006 filed
August 14, 2006.

11 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.11 to our Form 10-KSB filed March 31, 2008.

Edgar Filing: ALPHA INNOTECH CORP - Form 10-K

91



10.912 First Modification to Loan and Security Agreement with BFI Business Finance dated as of October 26,
2007

10.1013 Secured Promissory Note to BFI Business Finance dated January 15, 2008

10.1113 Second Modification to Loan and Security Agreement with BFI Business Finance dated as of February
29, 2008

10.1213 Secured Promissory Note to BFI Business Finance dated as of February 29, 2008

10.1314 Employment Contract with Ronald H. Bissinger dated July 17, 2007*

10.1413 Common Stock Purchase Agreement with William Snider dated as of March 13, 2008

10.1515 Loan Agreement by and between Montage Capital LLC and Agility Capital LLC dated as of May 9,
2008

10.1615 Form of Warrant issued to Montage Capital LLC and Agility Capital LLC

10.1716 Employee offer letter to Michael P. Henighan*

10.1817 Business Financing Agreement with Bridge Bank, National Association dated as of September 3, 2009

10.1917 Borrower Agreement dated as of September 3, 2009

11.118 Statement regarding computation of per share earnings

14.119 Code of Ethical Conduct

21.1 Subsidiaries of the small business issuer

23.1 Letter of Consent From Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, Rowbotham & Company

24.120 Power of attorney

31.1 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification (CEO)

31.2 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification (CFO)

32.1 Section 1350 Certification (CEO)

32.2 Section 1350 Certification (CFO)

* Management contract or compensatory plan
12 Incorporated by reference to our Form 10-QSB filed November 14, 2007.
13 Incorporated by reference to our Form 10-KSB filed March 31, 2008
14 Incorporated by reference to our Form 8-K filed July 20, 2007
15 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to our Form 8-K filed May 13, 2008
16 Incorporated by reference to our Form 8-K filed August 22, 2008
17 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to our Form 8-K filed September 5, 2009
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18Incorporated by reference to the discussion of “Income (Loss) Per Share” located in Note 1 of the consolidated
financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 of this report.

19 Copy available on our website at www.alphainnotech.com.
20 Incorporated by reference to Power of Attorney located on page S-2 of this report. 

Edgar Filing: ALPHA INNOTECH CORP - Form 10-K

93



Edgar Filing: ALPHA INNOTECH CORP - Form 10-K

94


